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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due
and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the company. The directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEREREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, aged 45, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in April 2008 and chairman
of the Company in June 2008. He took up the role of Chief
Executive Officer since 30 June 2014. Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
has over 10 years' experience in corporate finance transactions
and investments, and managerial position involving listed and non-
listed companies in Hong Kong. He obtained a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration (Finance) from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1995 and Bachelor of Electronic Engineering in
Computer (Hons) from the City University of Hong Kong in 1993.
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is the son of Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George,
Executive Director.

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George, aged 73, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 30 June 2014. He obtained a higher
certificate in Mechanical Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic
and a diploma in Plastic Technology from Stddeutsche Kunstsoff-
Zentrum, West Germany. He had worked in multinational chemical
companies for 30 years in sales, marketing and management
positions. Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George is the father of Mr. Lau Chi
Yuen, Joseph, Executive Director and Chairman.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, aged 57, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008.
He obtained Ph.D. Degree in Computer Science from the University
of Minnesota, USA in 1989. In the same year, he was appointed
as an Associate, Research Staff in the Institute of Systems Science
at National University of Singapore. In 1999, he was awarded
a Teaching Excellence Appreciation Award by the Dean of the
School of Engineering of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and was elevated as a Senior Member of the Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineers. He is now the chairman and
chief executive officer of Asia Vision Technology Ltd.

Mr. Tam Wing Kin, aged 51, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008. He is a
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Certified
Public Accountant (Practising). Previously, he had worked in one
of the leading international accountancy firms and several listed
companies in Hong Kong. He has over 20 years of experience in
accounting field.

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex, aged 54, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008.
He is an Independent Non-executive Director of e-Kong Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He obtained a BSc (Hons) degree in Electrical Engineering from
University of Bath (UK) in 1986 and subsequently a MBA degree
from Heriot Watt University (UK). He has over 15 years working
experience in financial market and corporate finance activities in
both Hong Kong and China.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEREREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Ng Suk Fun, aged 58, is the general manager of a major
subsidiary of the Company. She joined the Group in March 2011.
She has over 20 years of working experiences in the garment
industry. She oversees the manufacturing, sales and marketing,
merchandizing as well as general administrative activities of the
swimwear and garment segment of the Group.

Ms. Ng Ka Sim, aged 44, is the Group Financial Controller of
the Company. She joined the Group in November 2011. She has
extensive experience in auditing and financial management. She
had worked in multinational accounting firms and has over 10
years' experience in auditing. She is a member of CPA Australia
and a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She obtained a Bachelor of
Accounting in Australia.

Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan, aged 31, is the Company Secretary and
assistant finance manager of the Company. She joined the Group in
May 2008. She is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PURCHASE OF NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS OF A
SUBSIDIARY

On 13 June 2016, the Group further acquired 5% interest in
a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Ricotex Industrial Company
Limited (“Ricotex”), from a non-controlling shareholder at a cash
consideration of HK$2,000,000. As at the date of acquisition,
the transaction resulting a loss on acquisition of approximately
HK$1,242,000 recognised directly in equity for the year ended 30
June 2016. After completion of the acquisition, the Group held
50% equity interest of Ricotex.

BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES AND WARRANTS

On 18 May 2015, (i) the Board proposed a bonus share issue to the
qualifying shareholders on the basis of four bonus shares for every
one existing share held on 3 July 2015 (the “Record Date”); and (ii)
the Board also proposed the bonus warrant issue to the qualifying
shareholders on the basis of one warrant for every one existing
share held on the Record Date.

By an ordinary resolution passed on 24 June 2015, a bonus share
would be issued to shareholders on the basis of four bonus shares
for every one existing share held on the Record Date. The bonus
shares would be credited as fully paid at par by way of capitalisation
of an amount equal to the total par value of bonus shares standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company. On
the same day, another ordinary resolution passed for an issuance of
bonus warrant to shareholders on the basis of one warrant for every
one existing share held on the Record Date. Each warrants would
entitle the holder to subscribe in cash for one share at an initial
subscription price of HK$0.18 per warrant share, on the date falling
12 months from the date of issuance of the warrant. Issuance of
bonus shares and bonus warrants were completed on 13 July 2015.
Subsequently, 4,978,523 ordinary shares had been issued from the
exercise of bonus warrants on 28 July 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
=i EE Jﬁ n—.l- Af 553 *ﬁ'

Pursuant to the terms of convertible non-voting preference shares
("CPS") and Series B convertible non-voting preference shares
("Series B CPS™), the conversion price of the outstanding CPS and
Series B CPS were adjusted from HK$0.65 per share to HK$0.13 per
share and HK$0.16 per share to HK$0.032 per share respectively as
a result of the bonus share issue. The said adjustments took effect
immediately after 3 July 2015. No adjustment was required to be
made as a result of the bonus warrant issue.

Details of the transaction is set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 18 May 2015, 24 June 2015, 25 June 2015, 3
July 2015, 9 July 2015 and 1 June 2016 and circulars dated 5 June
2015 and 3 June 2016.

On 28 July 2016, an aggregate of 4,978,523 ordinary shares were
issued as a result of the exercise of the subscription rights attaching
to 4,978,523 warrants. The subscription rights attaching to the
remaining 981,380,235 warrants were expired on 12 July 2016.
The premium on the issue of shares, amounting to approximately
HK$846,000 was credited to the Company’s share premium
account.

PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES UNDER
SPECIFIC MANDATE

On 18 July 2016, the Company and the placing agent entered into
a placing agreement, pursuant to which the placing agent agreed
to procure not less than six placees to purchase up to 300,000,000
shares at placing price of HK$0.10 per share (the “Placing”). On the
same date, the Company and JL Investments Capital Limited (the
“Subscriber”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, entered
into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which the Subscriber
agreed to subscribe for and the Company agreed to allot and
issue an aggregate of 300,000,000 shares at subscription price of
HK$0.10 per share (the “Subscription”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Placing and Subscription were approved by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
7 September 2016. The Placing and Subscription has yet to be
completed as at the date of this report. The premium on the issue of
shares, amounting to approximately HK$52,800,000, net of share
issue expenses, will be credited to the Company’s share premium
account upon completion of the Placing and Subscription. The
shares will rank pari passu in all respects with the ordinary shares of
the Company in issue on the date of allotment.

Please refer to announcements of the Company dated 18 July
2016, 8 August 2016, 22 August 2016 and 7 September 2016 and
circular dated 22 August 2016 for details.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Finance results

For the year ended 30 June 2016 (the “Year"”), loss attributable to
owners of the Company (including continuing and discontinued
operations) was approximately HK$47,251,000. Comparing to
loss attributable to owners of the Company (including continuing
and discontinued operations) for year ended 30 June 2015 of
approximately HK$245,444,000, the decrease in loss attributable
to the owners of the Company was mainly attributable to (i)
approximately HK$37,900,000 of allowance for impairment
of goodwill made for swimwear cash-generating unit (2015:
HK$276,054,000); (ii) no allowance for impairment of goodwill
made for provision of on-line shopping, advertising and media
related services cash-generating unit (2015: HK$6,250,000); (iii) no
loss shared by the Group from an associate (2015: HK$8,070,000);
(iv) decrease in administrative expenses to approximately
HK$26,564,000 (2015: HK$37,824,000); (v) no loss incurred from
discontinued operation during the Year (2015: HK$9,255,000);
(vi) decrease in finance cost to approximately HK$525,000 (2015:
HK$4,296,000) as the promissory notes had been settled in
October 2014, and partially set off by (vii) no gain on deemed
disposal of an associate during the Year (2015: HK$61,628,000)
and (viii) decrease in gross profit to approximately HK$5,848,000
(2015: HK$22,328,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

Revenue and Gross Profit

For the Year, the Group's total revenue (including continuing and
discontinued operations) and gross profit (including continuing and
discontinued operations) were approximately HK$139,981,000
and HK$5,848,000 respectively, as comparing to approximately
HK$157,654,000 and HK$47,344,000 respectively for the year
ended 30 June 2015.

Details of the decrease in total revenue are discussed below:

Manufacturing and trading of high-end swimwear and

s

garment products (“Swimwear and garment segment”)

The revenue generated from Swimwear and garment segment
for the Year was approximately HK$136,981,000 (2015:
HK$118,137,000). Gross profit for the Year was approximately
HK$3,147,000 (2015: HK$20,970,000). Gross profit ratio for
the Year was 2.30% (2015: 17.75%). Increase in revenue was
mainly due to the contribution from Ricotex on sales of garment
and related products and it was partially offset by the decrease in
orders for high-end swimwear from several customers which were
affected by the economic downturn of European market and the
effect of the withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European
Union during the Year. Decrease in gross profit for the current year
was mainly due to (i) the decrease of selling price resulted from
the economic downturn of European markets; and (i) the increase
of portion on sales of garment products with lower gross profit
margin, which were manufactured by the factories of Ricotex in the
Kingdom of Cambodia (“Cambodia”) that still expanding in order
to enjoy the benefit from economies in scale.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Provision of on-line shopping, advertising and media related
services (“On-line shopping and advertising segment”)

The revenue generated from On-line shopping and advertising
segment for the Year was approximately HK$3,000,000 (2015:
HK$3,114,000). Gross profit for the Year was approximately
HK$2,701,000 (2015: HK$1,358,000). Gross profit ratio for the
Year was 90.03% (2015: 43.61%). The increase in gross profit
for the year was mainly due to revenue for this segment was
mainly generated from information technology services provided.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, this segment
became inactive.

Trading and retail of apparel and related accessories
(“Apparel and related accessories segment”) (discontinued
operation)

The revenue generated from Apparel and related accessories
segment for the year ended 30 June 2015 was approximately
HK$36,403,000. Gross profit for the year ended 30 June 2015
was approximately HK$25,016,000. Gross profit ratio for the year
ended 30 June 2015 was 68.72%. No consolidation was required
for this segment upon disposal of this segment since October 2014.

Impairment of Goodwill

For the Year, the Group's total impairment of goodwill was
approximately HK$37,900,000, comparing to approximately
HK$282,304,000 for the year ended 30 June 2015.

(i) The impairment of goodwiill relates to the swimwear
cash-generating unit (“Swimwear CGU”)

An impairment of goodwill relates to Swimwear CGU
was approximately HK$37,900,000 for the Year (2015:
HK$276,054,000).

EXEEE (ZR) ARXAE | —B-RFFH

EEENWED N

RRELIBY EERFEHEBRE ([RLE
HWREEDEE])

AEEHFELBYRESIHEEAZBRANR
75#53,000,0007T ( —Z = — R 4 - B #53,114,000
TC) o NEE 2 EFL BB ¥E2,701,0007T (=
T— R B%1,358,0007T) - AFEEFIE A
90.03% (ZZE—AF:4361% ) - AFEEF|
BN EZAREDEBZWAETEREFTIRE
2 BABHERIEFTER - RS BAR1E - b 2B
g o

EEREERMR GBI ([5R00RAEREE
#E]) (ERIEAZEFRE)

HE_ZT-AENAZTHIFER LA
Be {4 BB EE A 2 WA K9 578 #36,403,0007T ° &
EIE-AF AT HIEFEZENNARS
#25,016,000c HE T —HAFNA=1tHIt
FEBZEMNEE68.72% ° DR =T — 4
TALEREBEBGREAR-

BERE
AFEE AEEB HERELELNAEE
37,900,0007c ME&E—_E—hHAFNA=Z+HILE

F[E 4 5B #282,304,0007T ©

() BERERTELEN ([RERTELE
fr]) Bz & B E

RAFE BXRACELENARIE

ESRE A &7 37,900,000t (ZE—F
£ B #276,054,0007T ) ©

013



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The recoverable amount of the Swimwear CGU is determined
from value in use calculation (2015: value in use calculation).
The key assumptions are those regarding the discount rate,
growth rate and budgeted gross margin and turnover during
the period. The Group estimates discount rate using pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rate
is based on long-term average economic growth rate of the
geographical area in which the business of the CGU operates.
The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the Directors for the next
five years with residual period using the growth rate of 3.99%
(2015: 3.99%). This rate does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to
discount the forecast cash flows from the Group's activities of
manufacturing and trading of high-end swimwear and related
garment products is 14.57% (2015: 14.96%). Based on the
past performance and expecting of economic downturn
of European market and increase in production costs in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") in the coming
years, the Group has revised its cash flow forecasts for the
Swimwear CGU. The goodwill has therefore been reduced to
its recoverable amount through recognition of an impairment
loss against goodwill of approximately HK$37,900,000 for the
Year (2015: HK$276,054,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(i) The impairment of goodwiill relates to provision of on-

line shopping advertising and media related services
(“On-line shopping and advertising segment”)

The recoverable amount of the provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services CGU was determined
from value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation are those regarding the discount rate,
growth rate and budgeted gross margin and revenue during
the period. The Group estimates discount rate using pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth
rate is based on long-term average economic growth rate
of the geographical area in which the business of the CGU
operates. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

During the six months ended 31 December 2014, the Group
prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
years with residual period using the growth rate of 5%. This
rate did not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant markets. The rate used to discount the forecast cash
flows from the provision of on-line shopping, advertising and
media related services CGU was 13.22%. Based on the past
performance, the Group had revised its cash flow forecasts
and the recoverable amount for this CGU was negligible. The
goodwill allocated to this CGU was thus considered as non-
recoverable. The goodwill has therefore been fully impaired
through recognition of an impairment loss against goodwill of
approximately HK$6,250,000 during the six months ended 31
December 2014 and year ended 30 June 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

Valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

The investment in Charmston (Holdings) Limited is accounted for
as available-for-sale financial assets. The fair value of the available-
for-sale financial assets is determined by the market comparable
approach calculated based on the average price-to-book ratio and
average price-to-sales ratio of several companies listed on the Stock
Exchange (the “Comparables”).

At 30 June 2016, after a 24.90% (2015: 29.75%) discount on
lack of marketability (determined by the density function for the
maximum of a Brownian motion process by adopting average
annualised volatility of the Comparables and assuming marketing
period is approximately 6 months (2015: 6 months), the fair
value of the available-for-sale financial assets is approximately
HK$2,998,000 (2015: HK$2,998,000).

Key unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements are
disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

OPERATIONS

During the Year, the Group maintained an effective cost measures
in controlling the cost structure of its operations. Besides, the
Group will be extremely prudent in the expansion of its operations
in an organic manner. We also believe that it is of the Group’s best
interest to explore different sources of income while still maintains
an effective and efficient overhead structure for our supporting
departments in each of the business segments under operation.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$220,495,000 (2015: HK$248,457,000). As at 30 June 2016,
the Group had short term borrowings (including continuing
and discontinued operations) of approximately HK$19,500,000
(2015: HK$10,000,000). The increase of total borrowings was
mainly due to the further contribution funding from a non-
controlling shareholder of Ricotex during the Year. As at 30 June

016

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016

AHEESRMEEZME

R (R ) ARARZRAT ARIERT
HESMAE RIS MAE L AFEN
ERRIERBRA £ 52 SAAR ((TRLLE
AR 2 FHHRE RS T HEE 2 T4

L BORRETE

RZE—RENA=TH B=mERBESR
#2490% (ZZF—RF:29.75% )  MER=T
GBI ENERMAERIERRMCE
ERE WARMAIELR AR 2 FHFEER
BERRBEEHEBEOAEA (ZE—RF:6
BR)ETEE® AHEEEREECATERLD
752,998,000 (==& — A 4 : 512,998,000
JL) °

NHEREMERZEXRT AR @ AZER
A MR M 7P RE -

£

RAFE NREBRZEHERBRARESTE
AEE SREVE A AR 1 © e Sl AR EIASI LA B
REESTABRERGTAFHERERE -
AEBRG  SRARZBWARIR - R E A
KEMEEZEXZB OB IERBARTEXL
REBRZAXRE A AREEZ &ER

[

Bl

RBETRUMBER

R-ZE—RNENA=Z+TH AEBEERL
E#) 5782204950000 (—E—RF: B
248,457,0007T) R =T —"FEA~A=+H"
AEBHEEHERE (BEEFELEEBREE
MR FAE RS ) #)78#19,500,000T (ZZ— A
4 : 5 %10,000,0007T) B E B 2 MNTHE
EHRFRRE T S EFIERRR 2 — 1



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2016, the Group had bank and cash balances of approximately
HK$48,556,000 (2015: HK$71,773,000). The Group has a current
ratio of approximately 1.32 comparing to that of 2.05 as at 30 June
2015. As at 30 June 2016, the Group's gearing ratio of 11% (2015:
—14%) was calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as total liabilities (including current and non-current
liabilities as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity represents the
equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our Group's financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by our
Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to our Group or which
may not be material now but could be material in the future:

1. Reliance on a small number of key suppliers

The Group's five largest suppliers, which accounted for 68%
(2015: 55%) of the Group's total purchase, are mainly related
to the purchase of fabric. Except for purchase of fabric from
Dakota Industrial Company Limited (“Dakota”), of which a
supply agreement has entered into, there is no assurance that
other major suppliers shall continue to provide the fabric to us
at price acceptable to our Group. In the event that our Group
were unable to retain these suppliers, or procure replacement
suppliers, our business, results of operations, profitability and
liquidity might be adversely affected. However, the Group
has established strong business relationship with these major
suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

Reliance on a small number of key customers

The Group's five largest customers, which accounted for 70%
(2015: 64%) of the Group’s total turnover. Except for sale to
Dakota, of which a sales agreement has entered into, there
is no assurance that other major customers will continue
to conduct business with us. In the event that other major
customers materially reduce their purchase orders with the
Group or cease to conduct business with the Group and
the Group fails to obtain a comparable level of purchase
orders from new customers, the Group’s business, result of
operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.
Customer satisfaction with our products has a profound
effects on our profitability. To provide good quality services to
our customers, our Group is in constant communication with
our customers and potential customers to uncover and create
customer needs and help customers make informed decision.

Reliance on the European market

The Group’s total sales to the customers in the European
countries, which accounted for 49% (2015: 64%)of the
Group's total revenue for the Year. The Group derives
a majority of its sales from the exports to the European
countries, including but not limited to France, Spain, the
United Kingdom, Ireland and Sweden. Any unexpected
economic, political and social events in the European
countries may have significant impact on retail consumptions
which could, in turn, affect the financial performance of the
Group. For instance, the economies and financial system
of the European countries were adversely hit by the global
financial crisis recently. The Group cannot assure whether
these European countries will continue to deteriorate or
when the European market will cover. Should these European
countries’ markets continue to deteriorate and the Group is
unable to compensate such deterioration of these European
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

countries economy with other strategic moves, the Group’s
business operations and financial positions will be adversely
jeopardised. Therefore, the Group has diversified its market
from European countries and expand to other countries and
from swimwear business and expand to garment products by
set up Ricotex in 2014, of which is engaged in trading and
manufacturing of garment products and related accessories
and other related business, to minimise our risk on too reliance
on European countries as majority of Ricotex’s customers for
its garment products are come from Hong Kong.

Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group business transactions, assets and liabilities are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and
United States dollars, of which the Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk is considered limited. During the Year, the Group
did not carry out any hedging activity against foreign currency
risk. Any substantial exchange rate fluctuation of foreign
currencies against Renminbi may have a financial impact on
the Group. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign
exchange position and, if necessary, utilise hedging tools, if
available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.

Investment risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of occurrence
of losses relative to the expected return on any particular
investment. Key concern of investment framework will be
balancing risk and return across different investments, and
thus risk assessment is a core aspect of the investment decision
process. Proper authorisation system has been set up and
detailed analysis will be made before approving investments.
Regular updates on the progress of the investments of our
Group would be submitted to the Board.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

By an ordinary resolution passed on 24 June 2015, 3,945,435,032
bonus shares were issued to shareholders on the basis of four
bonus shares for every one existing share held on the Record Date.
The bonus shares were credited as fully paid at par by way of
capitalisation of an amount equal to the total par value of bonus
shares standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company. On the same day, another ordinary resolution passed for
an issuance of bonus warrant to shareholders on the basis of one
warrant for every one existing share held on the Record Date. Each
warrant entitled the holder to subscribe in cash for one share at an
initial subscription price of HK$0.18 per warrant share, on the date
falling 12 months from the date of issues of the warrant. Issuance
of bonus shares and bonus warrant were completed on 13 July
2015. Subsequently, 4,978,523 ordinary shares were issued from
the exercise of bonus warrants on 28 July 2016.

Subsequent to the issuance of bonus share, the conversion price of
the outstanding CPS had been adjusted from HK$0.65 per share to
HK$0.13 per share; and the conversion price of 312,500,000 Series
B CPS had been adjusted from HK$0.16 per share to HK$0.032 per
share. These said adjustments took effect immediately after 3 July
2015. No adjustment was required to make as a result of the bonus
warrant issue for both CPS and Series B CPS.

As at 30 June 2016, issued and fully paid share capital of the
Company included (a) 5,098,793,790 (2015: 986,358,758)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each; (b) 1,103,333,333 CPS (2015:
1,103,333,333) of HK$0.15 each. Pursuant to the terms of the
CPS, the conversion price of the outstanding CPS was adjusted
from HK$0.13 per share to HK$0.65 per share as a result of
completion of the share consolidation, and further adjusted to
HK$0.13 per share as a result of completion of the rights issue;
and (c) 279,100,000 (2015: 312,500,000) Series B CPS of HK$0.16
each. Pursuant to the terms of the Series B CPS, the conversion
price of the outstanding Series B CPS was adjusted from HK$0.16
to HK$0.032 per share as a result of completion of the rights issue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HEDGING POLICY

The Group does not have any material exposure to fluctuations in
exchange or interest rates. Therefore, no hedging measures have
been taken at present.

CREDIT POLICY

The credit terms given to customers are generally based on the
financial strengths of individual customers. The Group generally
allows an average credit term of 30 to 90 days to its trade
customers.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had 2,124 full time employees
compared with that of 1,276 in the previous financial year. The
staff costs, including directors’ remuneration, were approximately
HK$58,672,000 (2015: HK$49,414,000). The Group offers a
comprehensive remuneration package and benefits to its full time
employees in compliance with the regulations in Hong Kong, the
PRC and the Cambodia respectively, including medical scheme,
provident fund or retirement fund. In addition, the Group adopts
a share option scheme for eligible employees (including Directors)
and consultants to provide incentives to participants for their
contributions and continuing efforts to promote the interests of the
Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2016, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

CHARGE ON ASSETS

The Group has pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$613,000 (2015: HK$641,000) to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.

PROSPECT

For the Swimwear and garment segment, due to the recent
economic downturn of European market and effect of the
withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union, the
orders on hand for high-end swimwear for the factory located in
the PRC decreased and is expected to decrease continuously in
the coming year as comparing with last year. In order to seek new
business opportunities, a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Ricotex,
has established and is operating two factories in the Cambodia to
manufacture swimwear and garment products. Due to the import
tariff tax benefit offer to European customers, the operation in
Ricotex can attract more European customers and therefore Ricotex
can stimulate and increase revenue for swimwear and garment
segment in the future. In order to diversify our products, we are
developing new products with our new/existing business partners
during the Year, we expect there would be new orders received
in coming years. Also, our Group continues to closely monitor
and control cost in order to push up the gross profit margin of
Swimwear and garment segment.

For the On-line shopping and advertising segment, it has been
making losses for several years and subsequent to year end date,
this segment becomes inactive. Our Group continues to seek and
explore other business opportunity for the On-line shopping and
advertising segment.

The management of the Group continues to formulate its business
strategies to optimise the use of its operating and financial
resources. It will consider to diversify its operations including but
not limited to invest in financial instruments in order to ensure
cash availability through managing cash on hand to best meet
the Group's cash and liquidity needs to management risk. It will
also consider to reorganise the non-performing business segments
including but not limited to the disposal or downsizing of the non-
performing business segments.
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2016 (the
“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s operations and assets are located in Hong Kong,
the People’s Republic of China and the Kingdom of Cambodia.
An analysis of the Group's performance for the Year by business
segments and consolidated revenue and non-current assets of the
Group by geographical segments are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 59 to 61 of this
annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2015:
Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW
The business review of the Group for the Year is provided in the

section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 167 and
168 of the annual report.

SHARES ISSUED DURING THE YEAR

Details of share issued during the Year are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTIVE RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in note 33(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity respectively.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise the
share premium account, less accumulated losses.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There are no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Group during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Particulars of borrowings and pledge of assets of the Group as at
30 June 2016 are set out in notes 27 and 29 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and the warrants subscription, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement for the
Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph and Dr.
Lee Chung Mong, John shall retire at the Annual General Meeting.
All the retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting.

EXEE (ZR) ARXAE | —B-AFFH

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

BEREREE
AEER-_Z—RENA=ZTHZEEREE
EHFBHRN &AM B mRME27 729 -
BRAEE

AR B FBEN A M wMARMEE3S -

% AR 4 99 150

RAFE REBREGSRRBREZRESZ]R
PARZN/NCT N VA R BN 222 AR

5=

RAFE EERZEWT

BITES

EESLL
BB

BUFHTES

FHKBL

EL s

ISR ST

RIBAR BIEEREERFHEXELANKR

BERE LRI -FMARAESHTEERRK
BRBFRE LEEEE-

025



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the Risks Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”), the changes
in information of Directors of the Company subsequent to the
date of the 2015 Annual Report required to be disclosed were
(i) the updated biographic details of the Directors are set out
on pages 6 to 7 of the annual report; (i) Mr. Tam Wing Kin, an
independent Non-executive Director of the Company, was resigned
as independent non-executive director of Fittec International Group
Company, with effective on 4 February 2016, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”); and (iii) Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, an
independent Non-executive Director of the Company, was resigned
as independent non-executive director of Ruifeng Petroleum
Chemical Holdings Limited, with effective on 14 October 2015,
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to
be disclosed pursuant to the Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) confirmed that the Company
has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers that
they are independent under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

Save for contracts amongst group companies, no other
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which
the Company’s subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management are
set out on pages 6 to 8 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OTHER ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30 June 2016, the interests and short position of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the share capital, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standards of dealings by Directors of the
Company as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, were as follows:

(i) Long positions in Shares

RAREEMN—BERETEELAEEERE
BEREEMNTE BT E 2 BHNEERE Y
75 R 3R T 8% 35 o

EEREFETHRAEBRAQATARAAFZ
EAEAEESEME AR EE 2R -
HEROREEIS ZEER KR

RZZ—ARERNA=1TH EFRFRREE
TBRABEARRSEEMBEEE (EER
B MG ERD ([ REBE RG] ) EXVED)
2B BB D RIEEE T BB RAAR
AIRIBES MG IRAIEI2GAFEZER
iz foR R - IARIREIZEIR EM AR RIES5.46
ES67TIEMAARRRERETESE ZHERE
SITAEARB MR 2 e LORR AT :

3 3

() RROzHFR

Approximate
percentage of

Number of Nature of Type of issued share

Name of Director Shares interest Interest capital (%)

HEBTRAE

Exspns RO B ERME ERER BRB DL (%)

(Note 2)

(Htztz)

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph 1,179,841,995 Interest of a controlled Corporate 23.14%
(Note 1) corporation

BERASE 1,179,841,995 XA AR yNG] 23.14%

(HtaE1)
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(i)

Notes:

1. These shares are held as to 63,100,000 shares by Mr. Lau Chi Yuen,
Joseph personally and as to 1,116,741,995 shares by JL Investments
Capital Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph.
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is deemed to be interested in the shares
held by JL Investments Capital Limited.

2. The percentage of issued share capital had been arrived at on the
basis of a total of 5,098,793,790 ordinary shares in issue as at 30
June 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age had any right
to subscribe for the Shares or any share of its associated
corporations.

Short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
equity derivatives of the Company

As at 30 June 2016, none of the Directors had short positions
in Shares or underlying Shares of equity derivatives of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Substantial shareholders interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares

As at 30 June 2016, other than the interests of a Director or
chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the heading
“Directors” and chief executive's interests and/or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any specified undertaking of the Company or any other associated
corporation” above, the interests and short positions of persons in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

(i) Long positions in Shares

FERRRROREBROD ZESZR AR

RIZE-—RERNA=+TH BEXEERTE
TTHRABRARBHANR R ZEMIEARENK
EAE A ARROEE 2 I i - BRI ) B E
R/ IRE ] —HARBECEERAR
BAXETBABZEREIN UTALTRARTF
Betn RARRAR D P B ERRAKRR RIRIERE 5
KMEIEGRHIEIB6IFRATFEZERM 2R R

K A
KRB

() RRGZHFE

Approximate
percentage of

Type of issued share
Name of Shareholder Number of Shares interests capital (%)
HEBTRAE
BRRESE BB ROEE ERER BRBE DL (%)
(Note 2)
(Htst2)
Big Good Management Limited 969,000,000 Beneficial 19.00%
("Big Good")
Big Good Management Limited 969,000,000 B 19.00%
(IBig Good | )
Mr. Ma Hoi Cheuk (“Mr. Ma") 969,000,000 Corporate 19.00%
(Note 1)
SElEkE ([HEE]) 969,000,000 A7 19.00%
(B1at1)
Notes: HitaE

1.  Big Good is wholly-owned by Mr. Ma who is deemed to be
interested in underlying shares held by Big Good Management
Limited.

2. see Note 2 on page 29.
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(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
equity derivatives of the Company

Name of Shareholder

BRREE BB

Big Good

Big Good

Mr. Ma

SEE

Notes:

1.  see Note 2 on page 29.

2. see Note 1 on page 30.

Number of Shares

R BE

2,782,823,076
(Note 3, 4 & 5)
2,782,823,076
(K1at3 ~4K5)

2,782,823,076
(Note 2, 3, 4 & 5)
2,782,823,076
(Htat2 -3 - 455)
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(i) RERBRGREATETLRZHBR G

ZHFE
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Type of interests capital (%)
EE®T
RABEL
ERER Bat(%)
(Note 1)
(H1at1)
Beneficial 54.58%
=% 54.58%
Corporate 54.58%
NE] 54.58%

B 5

3. Big Good was the holder of 1,063,333,333 convertible non-voting
preference shares of HK$0.15 each which have no voting rights and
are convertible into ordinary shares. Pursuant to the terms of the
convertible non-voting preference shares, the conversion price of
the outstanding convertible non-voting preference shares has been
adjusted from HK$0.65 per share to HK$0.13 per share as a result
of bonus share issue on 3 July 2015. No adjustment is required to be
made as a result of bonus warrants issue.
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4. Big Good was also the holder of 279,100,000 series B convertible
non-voting preference shares of HK$0.16 each which have no voting
rights and are convertible into ordinary shares. Pursuant to the
terms of the series B convertible non-voting preference shares, the
conversion price of the outstanding series B convertible non-voting
preference shares had been adjusted from HK$0.16 to HK$0.032
per share as a result of the bonus share issue on 3 July 2015. No
adjustment is required to be made as a result of bonus warrants
issue.

5. Big Good was the holder of 160,400,000 warrants on 30 June 2016
and were able to convert into ordinary shares at HK$0.18 on 12 July
2016.

(iii) Short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
equity derivatives of the Company

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, the Directors of
the Company were not aware of any other person (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT TO
SUBSCRIBE FOR EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(i)

The Group has entered into the following connected
transactions during the Year and up to the date of this report:

During the Year, Ricotex, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into (i) the supply agreement with Dakota
Industrial Company Limited (“Dakota”) pursuant to which
Dakota has agreed to supply raw materials to Ricotex and (ii)
the sales agreement pursuant to which Ricotex has agreed to
sell products to Dakota.

During the Year, (i) Dakota supplied raw materials to Ricotex
totally approximately HK$26,037,000 and (ii) Ricotex sold
products to Dakota totally approximately HK$53,748,000.

The approximate aggregate value and the annual caps of each
category of the continuing connected transactions are set out

below:

Category

5l

|) Dakota supplled raw materials to Ricotex

||) Ricotex sold products to Dakota
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Billions Field Development Limited (“Billions Field”), is a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level
by holding 50% of the issued share capital in Ricotex; all
shareholders of Dakota are family members of each other.
The majority shareholders of Dakota and their immediately
family member are also majority shareholders of Billions
Field. Hence, Dakota is an associate of Billions Field through
common shareholders and is also a connected person of the
Company at the subsidiary level. Therefore the transactions
under the supply agreement and sales agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have
been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company who confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(b) on normal commercial terms; and

() in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions stated in paragraphs
above in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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(ii)

On 18 July 2016, the Company and JL Investments Capital
Limited (the “Subscriber”), a substantial shareholder of
the Company, entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which the Subscriber agreed to subscribe for
and the Company agreed to allot and issue an aggregate
of 300,000,000 shares at subscription price of HK$0.10 per
share (the “Subscription”). The Subscription was approved
by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 7 September 2016. The Subscription
has yet to be completed as at the date of this report. Please
refer to announcements of the Company dated 18 July 2016,
8 August 2016, 22 August 2016 and 7 September 2016 and
circular date 22 August 2016 for details.

The Subscriber is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lau
Chi Yuen, Joseph, chairman, executive Director and substantial
Shareholder of the Company. The Subscriber and Mr. Lau
Chi Yuen, Joseph together hold 1,179,841,995 shares
representing approximately 23.14% of the Company’s total
issued share capital as at the day of announcement. Hence, the
Subscriber is a connected person of the Company. Therefore
the Subscription constituted connected transaction of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year and up to the date of

this report, no connected transactions were entered into between

the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a connected person as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company

and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the

Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public

throughout the Year and up to the date of this report.

EXEE (ZR) ARXAE | —B-AFFH

(ii)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

RZZE—R"ELA+NB RAQAHIL
Investments Capital Limited ([32EE A | -
RARIZEERR)TURBHZ &
i REARERE mMAQFRE
FRBRHBEIOTCREERTA L
300,000,000/%/% 17 ([REESEIA]) - R
EHEERARTR_E—ARFILALH
BITZRERFRAS FERELE R
AR A E - REBEIE N R THK - FHIBH
ZEARTBEBRAE-_Z—RF+LA+N
B ZZ—XR"ENANB - ZZ—REN
A+ zZBRZ=ZZE—X"EFALALHZA
HmAERBBAE-ZE—XREFE/NAZ+=H
LB

REABARRAERE RWTESERTE
BRIALDREEZEESHEE - REBA
EHRPERIEERFE,179,841,9958% %
D (HEERARBRAMHBEHE TR
UBRE 2 #923.14% ) - At - REBABAR
RAZBEEALT - Bl BIBFAIFER T
RA REEEBRARAZBERS -

B EXPIIEEIN RAFEAMBERRER
B ARRIHETMHE AR MEREEAL
(EERAIFR ETRY)FTLEMBAERZS -

RHAABRERE

REARBMSENARENLBEESEAA X
BRAXFEREEARERDR ARFELAR
AIEBITRAEEED25% °

035



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s revenue and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the Year is

as follows:

The largest customer BARP

Five largest customers in aggregate AARBF &
The largest supplier BAHER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate hRHEEE ST

At no time during the Year have the Directors, their respective
associates and any Shareholder (who to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company) had any interest in any of the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate
social governance essential for creating a framework for motivating
staff, and contributes to the community in which we conduct our
business and creating a sustainable return to the Group.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

Health and safety are the most pressing concern across our business
operations. The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working

environment to the employees.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Conservation of the environment is a key focus for the Group.
The Group complies with environmental legislation, encourages
environmental protection and promotes environmental protection
awareness to all employees of the Group.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is committed to participating in community events from
time to time, and to the improvement of community well-being and
social services. The Group supports and encourages staffs to actively
participate in a wide range of charitable events outside working
hours, to raise awareness and concern for the community, and to
inspire more people to take part in serving the community in order
to provide loving care and financial assistance to the needy.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has adopted compliance and risk management
policies and procedures, and members of the senior management
are delegated with the continuing responsibility to monitor
adherence and compliance with all significant legal and regulatory

requirements.

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Company
and its subsidiaries.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees is one of the key stakeholders who affected the
sustainability of our business, their contribution and support are
values at all times. The Group believes that our people are critical
success factors to the Group’s competitiveness in the market.
As such, the Group regularly reviews compensation and benefits
policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the individual
performance of employees. Share options are provided to retain
loyal employees for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contributed to the success of the
Group’s operations.

The Group encourages its employees to participate in external
seminars to keep abreast of changes and updates on areas of
legal, compliance and financial accounting and reporting. Through
these types of training, we believe that the Group can increase
its efficiency and productivity while in general, the risk and
uncertainties of the Group can be reduced. The Company also
encourages continuous professional development training for the
Directors and senior management to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills which includes seminars and training, updates
on regulatory requirements and development and corporate
governance practices.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity against
liability incurred by the Directors and officers of the Company is
currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 28 July 2016, an aggregate of 4,978,523 ordinary shares
were issued as a result of the exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to 4,978,523 warrants. The subscription rights
attaching to the remaining 981,380,235 warrants expired on
12 July 2016. The premium on the issue of shares, amounting
to approximately HK$846,000 was credited to the Company’s
share premium account.

On 18 July 2016, the Company and the placing agent entered
into a placing agreement, pursuant to which the placing agent
agreed to procure not less than six placees to purchase up
to 300,000,000 shares at placing price of HK$0.10 per share
(the “Placing”). On the same date, the Company and the
Subscriber, entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant to
which the Subscriber agreed to subscribe for and the Company
agreed to allot and issue an aggregate of 300,000,000 shares
at subscription price of HK$0.10 per share.

The Placing and Subscription were approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 7 September 2016. The Placing and
subscription has yet to be completed as at the date of this
report. The premium on the issue of shares, amounting to
approximately HK$52,800,000, net of share issue expenses,
will be credited to the Company’s share premium account
upon completion of the Placing and Subscription. The shares
will rank pari passu in all respects with the ordinary shares of
the Company in issue on the date of allotment.

Please refer to announcements of the Company dated 18
July 2016, 8 August 2016, 22 August 2016 and 7 September
2016 and circular dated 22 August 2016 for details.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of, as at 30 June 2016, any business or
interest of each Director, substantial shareholder and management
shareholders (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and their
respective associates that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any
such person has or may have with the Group.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance for the Company. During the Year, the Company is in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules except provisions
A.2.1 and A.4.1 of the CG Code as detailed below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph,
the chairman of the Company, took up the role of Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ") since the position became vacant on 30 June 2014,
and thus there has been no segregation of duties during the Year.
The Board has evaluated the current situation of the Group and
taken into account of the experience and past performance of Mr.
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, the Board was of the opinion that it was
appropriate and in the best interest of the Company at the present
stage for vesting the roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the
Company in the same person as it helps to facilitates the execution
of the Group’s business strategies and maximises the effectiveness
of its operation. The Board will nevertheless review this structure
from time to time and will consider the segregation of the two roles
at the appropriate time.
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Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The current Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms, but are subject to retirement and re-
election at Annual General Meeting of the Company in line with the
Company's Articles of Association. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the CG Code.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by Messrs. RSM Hong Kong. A resolution will be submitted

to the annual general meeting to re-appoint RSM Hong Kong as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 September 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to maintain
high standards of corporate governance for the Company. During
the year ended 30 June 2016 (the “Year”), the Company is in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) except provisions
A.2.1 and A.4.1 of the CG Code as detailed below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph,
the chairman of the Company, took up the role of Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ") since the position became vacant on 30 June 2014,
and thus there has been no segregation of duties during the Year.
The Board has evaluated the current situation of the Group and
taken into account of the experience and past performance of Mr.
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, the Board was of the opinion that it was
appropriate and in the best interest of the Company at the present
stage for vesting the roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the
Company in the same person as it helps to facilitates the execution
of the Group's business strategies and maximises the effectiveness
of its operation. The Board will nevertheless review this structure
from time to time and will consider the segregation of the two roles
at the appropriate time.

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The current Independent Non-executive Directors are
not appointed for specific terms, but are subject to retirement and
re-election at Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of the Company
in line with the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”). As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure the Company'’s corporate governance practices are
no less exacting than those in the CG Code.
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THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions
and performances. Daily operations and execution are delegated
to management. The Board is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees;

(d) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The Independent
Non-executive Directors ensure that the Board accounts for the
interests of all shareholders and that all issues are considered in an
objective manner.

All Directors give sufficient time and attention to the Group's
affairs. The Board believes that the balance between Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate
to provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Group. The Company considers that the
Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as Directors in the best interest of the
Company and that the current Board size is adequate for its present
operations.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board comprises five members and their positions, as at the
date of this report, are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the Directors are
set out in the section of “Directors and Senior Management's
Biographies” on pages 6 to 8 of the annual report for the Year.
All Directors have exercised due care, skill and diligence and
fulfilled fiduciary duties to all the significant issues of the financial,
operational, compliance and risk management of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). Each Executive
Director has accumulated sufficient and valuable experience to hold
his position in order to ensure that his fiduciary duties have been
carried out in an efficient and effective manner. Save as disclosed,
none of the members of the Board have, in any respect, relation to
each other in any circumstances.
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The Board meets at least four times each year and more frequently
as the needs of the business demand. The Board held 24 board
meetings and 1 general meeting for the Year. Details of the
attendance of the Board members are as follows:
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REFIBWT

Attendance
H X8
Board General
meetings meetings
Executive Directors HITES ETEE3 BRRRXE
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph REREE 24/24 11
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George LS E 24/24 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYkHTES
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHEKEL 10/24 11
Mr. Tam Wing Kin BERREA 10/24 11
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex BB 11/24 11

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps
detailed minutes of each meeting, which are available to all
Directors for inspection. A draft of board minutes are circulated to
all Directors for their comment and approved as soon as practicable
after the board meetings.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain independent
professional advisors if necessary. They also have unrestricted
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for providing Directors with board papers and related
materials and ensuring that board procedures are followed.
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Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or Director arise, the matter is discussed in an actual
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest are
present at meeting dealing with conflict issues. Board committees,
including the Audit, Compensation, Finance and Nomination
Committees, all follow the applicable practices and procedures used
in board meetings for committee meetings.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liabilities insurance cover in respect of legal actions against Directors
and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

The Directors are encouraged to enroll in relevant professional
development programme to ensure that they are aware of their
responsibilities under the legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to the Company. During the Year, the Company arranged
training on compliance of the GEM Listing Rules, to the Directors
and senior management for continuous professional development
of their knowledge and skills in performance of their functions. The
Company Secretary maintains records of training attended by the
Directors. The training attended by the Directors during the Year are
as follows:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph BB E S E

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George DL
Independent Non-executive Directors MBI FHITESE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHKEL

Mr. Tam Wing Kin LSl ESies

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex it B v
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Independent Non-executive Directors

In order to protect the interest of the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”), the Company appointed three Independent
Non-executive Directors with relevant and sufficient experience and
qualification to perform their duties. One of the three Independent
Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise,
which complies with the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules.
During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules of 5.06 relating to have at least one-third
in number of its Board members comprising Independent Non-
executive Directors. The three Independent Non-executive Directors
declared and confirmed with the Company on an annual basis of
their independency with the Group in accordance with Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has assessed and concluded
that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent
in appearance and in substance in view of the definition of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Independent Non-executive Directors do not
hold any office with any connected parties of the Company or have
any financial interests other than those Directors’ remuneration as
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statement.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, the chairman of the Company, took up
the role of Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") since 30 June 2014, and
thus there is no segregation of duties during the Year. The Board
has evaluated the current situation of the Group and taken into
account of the experience and past performance of Mr. Lau Chi
Yuen, Joseph, the Board was of the opinion that it was appropriate
and in the best interest of the Company at the present stage for
vesting the roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the Company
in the same person as it helps to facilitates the execution of the
Group's business strategies and maximises the effectiveness of its
operation. The Board will nevertheless review this structure from
time to time and will consider the segregation of the two roles at
the appropriate time.
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The Chairman of the Company has held one private meeting with
all Independent Non-executive Directors to discuss major events or
issues which incurred during the Year and the Company’s business
plan to be developed in the coming year. The Board believed that
Independent Non-executive Directors could through this private
meeting voice out their concerns on financial aspect after discussed
major events or issues and provided constructive advice on the
direction of the Company's future development.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND RETIREMENT

The procedures of appointment, re-election and retirement of
Directors are published in the Articles of the Company. The
procedures for shareholders to propose any person to become a
Director of the Company are published on the Company’s website.

Independent Non-executive Directors were not appointed for
specific terms, subject to re-election. Every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph and Dr.
Lee Chung Mong, John shall retire at the AGM. All the retiring
Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors of the Company have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors adopted by the Company throughout the
Year.

The Company has adopted the same code of conduct for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the code of conduct by the
relevant employees was noted by the Company.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Company established Compensation Committee with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the Compensation Committee comprises a majority
members of Independent Non-executive Directors.

At 30 June 2016, the Compensation Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John,
Mr. Tam Wing Kin, Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex and one Executive
Director, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the
Chairman of the Committee.

The Compensation Committee proposed to the Chairman relating
to the remuneration of Executive Directors. The Compensation
Committee also recommended to the Board on the Company'’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration.

The Director’s fee payable to him is determined by making reference
to his duties and responsibilities in the Company and the prevailing
market conditions, as approved by the Board in accordance with
the Company'’s remuneration policy pursuant to the authority given
by the Shareholders. No Director has taken part in setting his own
remuneration. Meetings of the Compensation Committee shall be
held at least once a year.

The Compensation Committee held 1 meeting during the Year.
Details of the attendance of the Compensation Committee
meetings are as follows:

Committee members ZEEHE
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph EEREE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHKEELT
Mr. Tam Wing Kin BaRfEE S
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex B &

During the Year, there was one meeting held by the Compensation
Committee to review the Group's term of reference for the
Compensation Committee and review all Directors' Remuneration.

Details of the remuneration paid to Directors and members of
senior management by band for the Year are disclosed in notes
16(b) and 17(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

EXEE (ZR) ARXAE | —B-AFFH

(ORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
R EA &

¥yMESeE

ARREKIZFTMEE ® - WIZAIZR EHRA
S M AT E RS R &0 [ LAJE 1 Il E LB -

RAREHE FTHNEESRERNIHBILIE
HITEEZKE -

RZE—XR"FAAZT+H FHEZESBRE=
BRUIINTESTTHX Tﬁi BRI E S
@Y%E&—%ﬂﬁ%%%ﬂ DR ILHE o IHIEX
EERZEEGER -

%ﬁ@ﬂi/\aﬁEV?EﬁﬁF’?#ﬂﬁé%MiZ@

Zo T NEERNERARRZBEE BEERS
%&EEAE\ HNeZREA R ER B
ZHEMBLEXANREBEHEZREF MES
ZREER -

BNTEECEFREDNERKEREIAFLZ
BEREREMALMNE HEFSRERREE
BARBZMEB R E- MBEE2HETE
EXGZME FMZESRELBFEIT—

R
FNEZEE @R AFERNRT - RIE A
MEEEeeHR KB LFERBEFBNT

Attendance

H IR

11
171
171
171

FMZEeNAFEADRITREH A
AMAREFHEZE e CREEERRT2EBE
BZHH-

%$¢J§§H%%$&%@Eﬁ)ﬂ?%z?ﬁ%ﬁ
BEEEl D 2 H N IE N ARG BT IR R M 5T 16(b) &
17(a) ¥ & o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

"MsL\iEd:

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee in
2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on nominations, appointment
of Directors and Board succession. The Nomination Committee
selects candidates for directorship with reference to the board
diversity policy (the “Policy”) and the candidate’s professional
knowledge, industry experience, personal ethics and integrity, and
time commitments. During the selection process, the Nomination
Committee may consider referrals or engage external recruitments
professionals when necessary.

The Board has adopted a Policy in August 2013 which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance the quality of its performance. In designing the Board'’s
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company will monitor the
implementation of this Policy and will from time to time review this
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this Policy.

The Nomination Committee comprises at least three members, the
majority of whom shall be Independent Non-executive Directors.
The current members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Lau
Chi Yuen, Joseph, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing
Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is
the Chairman of the Committee. Meetings of the Nomination
Committee shall be held at least once a year.
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The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the Year. Details
of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting is as
follows:

Committee members ZEENRE
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph REREE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHEKEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin BaRiEE A
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex SR e

During the Year, there was one meeting held by the Nomination
Committee to review the size and composition of the Board and the
Group's term of reference for the Nomination Committee.

FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a Finance Committee with written terms
of reference to review and approve banking facilities to be granted
or issued by the Company, provision of corporate guarantees by
the Company for its subsidiaries and opening of bank or securities
related accounts. The Finance Committee comprises at least three
members. The current members of the Finance Committee are Mr.
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing
Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the
Chairman of the Committee.

The Finance Committee held 1 meeting during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Finance Committee meeting is as follows:

Committee members ZEEREB
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph AERrEE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHXBEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin i e
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex IR
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee is to communicate with the management
of the Company from time to time, including but not limited to
review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company, the effectiveness of its internal control systems, the
quarterly, interim and annual results of the Company. The Audit
Committee is also responsible for considering the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor and reviewing
the impairment to its independency with any non-audit services
performed by the external auditor.

As at the date of this report, the members of Audit Committee,
which are all Independent Non-executive Directors, are Dr. Lee
Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man,
Alex. Mr. Tam Wing Kin is the Chairman of the Committee.

The Audit Committee held 6 meetings during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

KE

Committee members ZEE

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHXBELT
Mr. Tam Wing Kin B
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex RN o

During the Year, there were six meetings held by the Audit
Committee (i) to review the Company's audited annual results for
the financial year ended 30 June 2015, unaudited first quarterly
results for the three months ended 30 September 2015, unaudited
interim results for the six months ended 31 December 2015 and
unaudited third quarterly results for the nine months ended 31
March 2016; (ii) to review the Group's internal control system;
and (iii) to review the Group’s term of reference for the Audit
Committee.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the total fee paid/payable in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the Company'’s external auditor is
set out below:

Types of services AR 7% 12 4R
Audit services EZ RS
Taxation fee 5 E A
Non-audit services IETZ RS

Total BT

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary has been a full time employee who has
knowledge of the Company’s affair. The Company Secretary of the
Company is Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan, who is engaged and appointed by
the Board on 3 August 2011. For the Year, the Company Secretary
of the Company confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.

INTERNAL CONTROL REVIEW AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Proper internal controls not only facilitate the effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, ensure compliance with laws and
regulations, but most importantly, help to manage risk exposure of
the Company. The Company is committed to the risk identification,
risk assessment, evaluation of internal control system and
monitoring of remediation plan to control deficiencies. The Audit
Committee has met with the management of the Company on a
regular basis to review the existing internal control practice.

During the Year, the Board considers that the system of internal
control for the Group is adequate and effective.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance and prospects. It is also responsible for
preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group's financial position on a going concern basis and other price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. Management
provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to
discharge these responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the auditor to the shareholders are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 57 and 58.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedure for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s Articles, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for put forward a proposal at a Shareholders’
meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose
resolutions at general meetings under the Company’s Articles or
the Cayman Islands Companies Law. As regard to the procedure
for proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to
the procedures made available under the “Corporate Information”
section (Procedures to propose director) of the Company’s website
at www.luxey.com.hk.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires to the Board in

writing though the Company Secretary of the Company's website
at www.luxey.com.hk.

Address: Unit B, 5th Floor, Hang Cheong Factory Building,
1 Wing Ming Street, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2520 6020

Fax: (852) 2520 6086

Email: admin@luxey.com.hk

The Company Secretary of the Company shall forward the
Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board, where appropriate to answer
the Shareholders’ questions.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents for the Year.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant information
to Shareholders in a timely manner. The Company also recognises
that people other than Shareholders, such as potential investors
and the investment community generally may have an interest in
information about the Company. Annual, quarterly and interim
reports offer comprehensive operational and financial performance
information to Shareholders and the AGM provides a forum for
Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. The
Company regards the AGM as an important event and all Directors,
senior management and external auditor make an effort to attend
the AGM of the Company to address Shareholders’ queries. All the
Shareholders are given a minimum of 20 clear days and minimum
of 20 clear business days’ notice of the date and venue of the AGM
of the Company. The Company supports the CG Code's principle
to encourage Shareholders’ participation. The Company has also
complied with the requirements concerning voting by poll under
the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and
the rights of Shareholders to demand a poll included in circulars
to Shareholders dispatched by the Company and explained by
the chairman of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions
proposed at general meeting are voted separately. The results of the
poll was published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Company has maintained a corporate website
(www.luxey.com.hk) as a channel to promote effective corporate
communication with the investors and the general public. The
website is used to disseminate Company announcements, circulars,
Shareholder information and other relevant financial and non-
financial information in an electronic format on a timely basis.

The Shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly to
ensure effectiveness and compliance with the current regulatory
and other requirements.

056

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016

BRRBE

RARREBITRKEEEHRBER TIRENBUR

RARNRBEREAINZ AL (HIIABEERE
ERFERR) TS HARAER A ER - F
W EERELTHBELETREZEEER
MBRBER MREAFASAKRREMRS
WBAAFHEESEERIRER - AQAIR
BRREAFREAEZEH MAEES SRE
BE RINEZERIEE N HEARRBMNRRA
FREUBEREAB - ARQRKRMERE
BUHBELE-THAERZEIR-ZTHEEXBZE
M UNEARARBITRREREF AN ALK
B ARARIRIFEEERTAAIRA]  SEIAR
R RARRIFEETEIFER EMARANE A
BRERIANBE - RERIEFEREERKIE
SRR FIEEN AR T M AR R L A8 K
W WHBRRASERNE LRE - TERKE
A LIRZMRER BB LHETROR - REXR
R EERG TR T A RT 2 Ak £

AR AR A A B Bl (www.luxey.com.hk) » E&
REBRREE R ARETAERARBBZRE
LA A E F 7 A R A R A Bk iR
REMKHEMB AT RIEME 2 ER -

BRVBBBURE T Hima]  AEREBMIER
BT E AR R EAMRE -



TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LUXEY INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Luxey International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 59 to 166, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2B RE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and it subsidiaries
as at 30 June 2016, and their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 September 2016
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Continuing operations
Revenue

Cost of sales and service rendered

Gross profit

Other income
Impairment of goodwiill
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Gain on deemed disposal of an
associate

Share of losses of an associate

Loss before tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Loss for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operation

Loss for the year from discontinued

operation

Loss for the year

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEREER

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNA=1HI F/F
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2016 2015

—2-RE —TRF

Note HK$'000 HK$ 000
Hii BT BETFIT
8 139,981 121,251
(134,133) (98,923)

5,848 22,328

9 8,848 7,256
22 (37,900) (282,304)
(782) (1,824)
(26,564) (37,824)
(50,550) (292,368)
117 (525) (4,296)
12 - 61,628
- (8,070)
(51,075) (243,106)

15 (478) 181
(51,553) (242,925)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEREER

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HI FE

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Loss from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued
operation

Loss attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests
Loss from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued
operation

Loss attributable to non-
controlling interests

Loss per share

From continuing and
discontinued operations

Basic (cents per share)
Diluted (cents per share)

From continuing operations
Basic (cents per share)

Diluted (cents per share)
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2016 2015
—E—-XREF —ZE—hHEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(47,251) (241,664)
- (3,780)
(47,251) (245,444)
(4,302) (1,261)
- (5,475)
(4,302) (6,736)
(51,553) (252,180)
(0.940) (4.977)
(0.940) (4.977)
(0.940) (4.900)
(0.940) (4.900)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:

[tem that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment

Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Fair value changes of available-for-
sale financial assets

Reclassification adjustments for
amounts transferred to profit or loss
of available-for-sale financial assets
— Disposal
— Impairment losses

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #EZ—F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR R &

At 30 June 2016 R-FE—NFENH=1H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Available-for-sale financial assets
Club debenture

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Pledged bank deposits
Bank and cash balances

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Loan from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

Employee benefit obligations

Current tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS
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Note
HtaE

21
22
24

31

25
26
27
27

28

29
30

31

2016 2015
—E—XE —T—H%F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
30,590 19,641
101,064 138,964
2,998 2,998

50 -

- 412
134,702 162,015
13,285 6,664
23,339 7,364
613 641
48,556 71,773
85,793 86,442
33,787 18,795
19,500 10,000
4,650 6,444
6,922 6,946
64,859 42,185
20,934 44,257
155,636 206,272
732 -
154,904 206,272




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Capital and reserves RAE K # &

Share capital LN

Reserves f#

Equity attributable to owners of IN/NESTE Z N
the Company FEfE#E 2

Non-controlling interests FEERR B 2

TOTAL EQUITY AR

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 September 2016 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
2EE
Chairman
*5E

& B R R &R

At 30 June 2016 R-FE—NFENA=+H

2016 2015

—E—XE —T—H%F

Note HK$’000 HK$°000
oka BT T BT T
32 261,144 225,364

34 (112,890) (29,925)

148,254 195,439

6,650 10,833

154,904 206,272

EZgR T RFAAT - HAYELAT
JIEERRRE

Lau Chun Fat, George
2ER
Executive Director

HITEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BREZSHES®HE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F—NFNA=1THILF/F

At1July 2014

Total comprehensive income for the year
Capital reorganisation (note 3/3))

Settlement of promissory notes (ote 32/))

Business combination
Disposal of subsidiaries
Purchase of non-controlling interests

Changes in equity for the year

At30 June 2015 and
1 July 2015

Total comprehensive income for the year

Bonus issue (note 32/¢))

Conversion of series B convertible
non-voting preference shares into
ordinary shares (note 32(d))

De-registration of a subsidiary

Purchase of non-controlling interests
(note 36)

Changes in equity for the year

At 30 June 2016
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R-F-RELA-H

EREANEER
RAEE (fi3206)
BERREER (M
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HEHEAT
BRI HEMES
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Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAER
Plant and
machinery Capital ~ Investment Non-
Share Share  Translation  revaluation  redemption  revaluation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
HERBS

k& Rita® EXmR Efifif AAEERE REEHER 2ithi 8% FERER BREE

(n0te32)  (note 4(blf)  (note 4))  (note 34B)ii)  (note 4b)f)  (note 4o

(Hit32)  (Wa400)  (Basabli) (W4 (BEabli)  (Wa4000)
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BEFT E¥TT BEFT ERTT BRI Vel 4z BT FEFT BEFT Vel 4z
412,09 612,523 (74) 1377 150 (443) (620,129) 405,49 (15,454) 390,040
- - - 1216 - 43 (245,444) (243785) (6,736) (250,521)
(236,726) - - - - - 236,726 - - -
50,000 - - - - - - 50,000 - 50,000
- - - - - - - - 11,283 11,283
- - - - - - - - 5470 5470
- - - = - - (16,270) (16,270) 16,270 =
(186,726) = = 1216 - 43 (24,988) (210,05) 26,281 (183,768)
225,364 612,523 (74) 2593 150 - (645,117) 195,439 10833 206272
= = (552) 1,860 = = (47,251) 45,943) (3.875) (49,818)
39454 (39454) - - - - - - - -
(3.674) 3674 - - - = g " R -
- - - - - - - - 450 450
- - B - - - (1,242) (1,242) (758) (2,000)
35,780 (35,780) (552) 1,860 - - (48493) (47,185) (4183) (51,368)
261,144 576,743 (626) 4453 150 - (693,610) 148,254 6,650 154,904
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation (note 14)

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Interest income

Depreciation

Loss on de-registration of a
subsidiary

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Write off of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment of goodwill

Reversal of allowance for inventories

Allowance for receivables

Reversal of allowance for receivables
Loss on disposal of available-for sale

financial assets

Gain on deemed disposal of
an associate

Share of losses of an associate

Operating loss before working
capital changes

Increase in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

(Decrease)/increase in provision
for employee benefit obligations

Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Income tax refunded
Income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities
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2016 2015
—E-XRF —ZE-TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(51,075) (243,106)
- (10,754)
(51,075) (253,860)
525 5,177
(161) (946)
7,987 2,944
450 L
(3,120) 147

- 73

- 4,078

37,900 282,304
- (802)

1,283 1,427
(1,055) (1,318)
- 789
- (61,628)

- 8,070
(7,266) (13,545)
(6,621) (17,249)
(16,203) 12,706
14,467 28,822
(1,412) 1,066
(17,035) 11,800
10 50
- (1,056)
(17,025) 10,794
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HI FE

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Decrease/(increase) in pledged
bank deposits

Interest received

Business combination

Disposal of subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets

Purchase of club debenture

Purchases of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Capital contribution to an associate

Loan to an associate

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Repayment of finance lease payables

Finance lease charges paid

Loan from a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary

Repayment of bank and other loans

Net inception of trust receipt loans

Interest paid

Purchase of non-controlling interests

Net cash generated from
financing activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank and cash balances
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2016 2015
—E—X —ET—hF
HK$'000 HKS 000
BT T BT T
28 (210)

161 853

- 23,712

- 736

- 10,160

(50) -
(15,984) (4,075)
3,120 5
- (9,000)
- (10,000)
(12,725) 12,181
- (26)
- )
9,500 -
- (604)

- 6,530
- (666)
(2,000) -
7,500 5,233
(22,250) 28,208
(967) -
71,773 43,565
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR wmAR M

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNA=1HI F/F

GENERAL INFORMATION

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business is Unit B,
5th Floor, Hang Cheong Factory Building, 1 Wing Ming Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company's
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HI FE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS

(a)

(b)

068

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) has adopted
all the new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
that are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 July 2015. The adoption
of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in
significant changes to the Group's accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s financial statements and
amounts reported for the current and prior years.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 July 2015. The directors
anticipate that the new and revised HKFRSs will be
adopted in the Group's consolidated financial statements
when they become effective. The Group is in the process
of assessing, where applicable, the potential effect of all
new and revised HKFRSs that will be effective in future
periods but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on
its results of operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

(c)

effective (Continued)

List of new and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective that are relevant to the Group

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
HKFRS 16 Lease?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative®

Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation’
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with earlier application permitted.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
came into operation during the financial year. Although
the Company is not incorporated in Hong Kong, the
GEM Listing Rules require the Company to comply with
the disclosure requirements of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). As a result, there
are changes to presentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB R

For the year ended 30 June 2016 EZ—F

070
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

(d) Amendments to the GEM Listing Rules

The Stock Exchange in April 2015 released revised
Chapter 18 of the GEM Listing Rules in relation to
disclosure of financial information in annual reports that
are applicable for accounting periods ending on or after
31 December 2015, with earlier application permitted.
The Company has adopted the amendments resulting in
changes to the presentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. plant and
machinery that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 30 June. Subsidiaries are entities over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The
Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR wRAR N

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #ZE —F— NFNA=1HI FE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FEETEHE (&)

(@) Z=EMRE (&)

(@) Consolidation (Continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

072

Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016

4, FESTBE(E)

(a) HEMRE (&)

IR RS R I IF AN A R E & KA
BHAENME QRS - IR RS
TR B ISR R MR s E &)
%éﬁ%Z%ﬁWW%JﬁZ Rk
mZRGaBREMEMEEKERA
#%h%”iﬂ%$$§@ﬂ%%ﬁ
REEWSAE EIFERRREAR
REEEA AR D

BN BB SR I AR A ok 4 o H IR S At -
BERSEEMEEWZETEE ETA
KRNBEB AN IFEIERR R -

I B B UK m) KA B R BHE S
ZHEBEANEGZHINERREZ S (B
HAREASDZHEBANETZRS)
ABR o RS I SRV AR 1O BR T (B AR
ﬂﬁu§%ﬁWW% GILELE: Syl
"""" EH o FEREaBENFERED
NHEWKEAFERZR BEER
BaER HARBHEBADE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR wmAR M

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #ZE —F— NFNA=1HIFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FEETEEK (&)

(b) EBEHIREE

(b) Business combinations and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred and the services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair
values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(o)

074

Business combinations and goodwiill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FESTBE(E)
(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued) () hemE (&)

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s (i) SERHBEREZFIIXZREE
financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into RYVRERINER R IR 5)
the functional currency on initial recognition using HEmGERERANGEE
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction INEBREERBBREBENRS
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign HAOR B 1O BB R o (R0 B IR
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at FIEEA 2 BENERER
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair BAFEFERAINEEZFE
value in foreign currencies are translated using the BEXBEENREEATEERZ
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are MERYTH o
determined.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item BEFEKIEE ZBEBERAMER
is recognised in other comprehensive income, W 25 e BRBRF » 5% BB 2 (T AAJ B I,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is HoRHMEEK=ER B Ik
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a E%EE 2 BERERERE
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in ZRE 2 ERE R E D R B
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain R o

or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

076

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation currency
as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR wmAR M

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #ZE —F— NFNA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the translation reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than plant
and machinery as described below) held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

078

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Plant and machinery held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their revalued amounts, being the
fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do
not differ materially from those that would be determined
using fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation
of such plant and machinery is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in plant and
machinery revaluation reserve, except to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the
increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying
amount arising on the revaluation of such plant and
machinery is recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the plant and
machinery revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR wmAR M

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of revalued plant and machinery is
recognised in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of a revalued plant and machinery, the
attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the plant
and machinery revaluation reserve is transferred directly
to accumulated losses.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or
revalued amounts less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

20% - 50% or
over the lease term,

Leasehold improvements

whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 20%
Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment 20% - 50%
Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

()

(9)

080

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Club debenture

Club debenture with indefinite useful life is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed
annually or when there is any indication that the club
debenture has suffered an impairment loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #ZE —F— NFNA=1HIFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FEETEEK (&)

(h) BRARBUEBISHMIA

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control
on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

082

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of
the financial assets within the timeframe established by
the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair
value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in
the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. These assets
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method (except for short-term receivables
where interest is immaterial) minus any reduction
for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically trade
and other receivables, bank and cash balances are
classified in this category.
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0}

()

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of these investments are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve, until the
investments are disposed of or there is objective
evidence that the investments are impaired, at
which time the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest
calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

084

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the component is abandoned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #EZ =%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

(m)

(n)

Discontinued operations (Continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, which comprises:

— The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BHRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 EZ—F

—NFNA=THIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

086

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

On-line shopping, advertising and media related service
income is recognised when the service is rendered.

Subcontracting fee income and consultancy fee income is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Distribution right fee income and participation fee income
is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the

terms and conditions of the agreement.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE C

For the year ended 30 June 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Employee benefits

()

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme") under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at
5% of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee and
vest fully with employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and wages to the central pension scheme to
fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension scheme
is to meet the required contributions under the
scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

088

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F— NFNA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

090

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR wmAR

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #ZE —F— NFNA=1HI FE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FEETEE(£)

(u) BiE (&)

(u) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

092

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or that are not yet available for use are reviewed for
impairment annually and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is
the case, recoverable amount is determined for the CGU
to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed
using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose
impairment is being measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #EHZ—F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses for CGU are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets are impaired, based on
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated
future cash flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have
been affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment
below its cost is considered also to be objective evidence
of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not
to be impaired individually, the Group assesses them
collectively for impairment, based on the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
delayed payments in the portfolio, observable changes
in economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables, etc.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F— NFNA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

094

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is
directly reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the
amount of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent
period and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed (either
directly or by adjusting the allowance account for trade
receivables) through profit or loss. However, the reversal
must not result in a carrying amount that exceeds what
the amortised cost of the financial asset would have been
had the impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #EZ =%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(y)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 5. B THEEMNEERE

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting

period, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

096

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment

as at 30 June 2016 was approximately HK$30,590,000
(2015: HK$19,641,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #EHZ—F

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b) Income taxes

(0

The Group is subject to income taxes in several

jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in

determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made. During the year, income tax of approximately
HK$478,000 (2015: HK$181,000) was charged (2015:
credited) to profit or loss.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the
reporting period was approximately HK$101,064,000
(2015: HK$138,964,000) after an impairment loss of
approximately HK$37,900,000 (2015: HK$282,304,000)
was recognised during the year. Details of the impairment
loss calculation are provided in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 EZ—F

—NFNA=THIFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

098

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts,
in particular of a loss event, requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of the trade and other receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate
has been changed.

As at 30 June 2016, accumulated impairment loss for
bad and doubtful debts amounted to approximately
HK$2,486,000 (2015: HK$2,258,000).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed. No
allowance for slow-moving inventories was made for the
year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: reversal of allowance of
HK$802,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR wmAR

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #ZE —F— NFNA=1HI FE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(f) Fair values of plant and machinery

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer
to assess the fair values of the plant and machinery.
In determining the fair values, the valuer has utilised a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. The fair value of plant and machinery
at the end of the reporting period was approximately
HK$16,765,000 (2015: HK$11,454,000).

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United
States dollars and Renminbi (“RMB”) which are the
functional currencies of the principal operating entities of
the Group. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 EZ—F

—NFNA=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

100

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables. In order to minimise credit
risk, the directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual debt regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The Group’s
financial liabilities are repayable on demand or within one
year.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its
pledged bank deposits and loan from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary. These deposits and loan bear
interest at variable rates varied with the then prevailing
market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,
the Group's operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

(e)

U]

102

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets: ERMEE:

Loans and receivables (including ERREWUER(BERS

cash and cash equivalents) KE®EEER)
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE

Financial liabilities: cREE:
Financial liabilities HEHERATTEZ
at amortised cost cRaE

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNNA=1HI F/F

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 30 June

2016:

Description

Recurring fair value measurements:

Available-for-sale financial assets
Unlisted equity securities
Plant and machinery

Total

Description

Recurring fair value measurements:

Available-for-sale financial assets
Unlisted equity securities
Plant and machinery

Total

104
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STRZBRBENT
Fair value measurements using: Total
NVETERA: CEl
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
#1E $2[E ] E—
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
EYFT BYEFT BYEF BEFT
- - 2,998 2,998
- - 16,765 16,765
- - 19,763 19,763
Fair value measurements using: Total
RATEHERA: &t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
1 F2E FE —T-1F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
- - 2,998 2,998
- - 11,454 11,454
p h 14,452 14,452




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on

level 3:

Description

At beginning of year
Total gains or losses recognised

in profit or loss #

in other comprehensive income
Purchases

At end of year

# Include gains or losses for assets held
at the end of reporting period

e
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(b) AEIB AV EFEZEELK:

Available-
for-sale

financial assets

unlisted equity Plant and 2016
securities machinery Total
THEE
tREE
FETRE B ER “E-RE
&% Hes CE
HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS000
BETT BETT BETT
2,998 11,454 14,452
- (5,289) (5,289)
- 2,952 2,952
- 7,648 7,648
2,998 16,765 19,763
- (5,289) (5,289)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DAYFEFE (&)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on b) UAEIBAFEF= 2 EE HEK:
level 3: (Continued) (#)
Available-
for-sale financial
assets unlisted Plantand  Disposal group 2015
equity securities machinery held for sale Total
At HE
CHEE
i} RFELEZ “Z-h%
Description 2 BARES W ke HEAR GE
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
BEFIT BETT BETT BETT
At beginning of year REH] = 3,103 20,093 23,196
Total gains or losses recognised B #3325 E5 1B 48 28
in profit or loss i i=Eld (4,078) (2,069) (1,637) (7,784)
in other comprehensive REMZEKA
income (4,078) 1,621 - (2,457)
Business combination E%a - 8,799 - 8,799
Disposals HE - - (11,380) (11,380)
Reclassification adjustments for AIEHESREE
amounts transferred to profit 2 BEZ 1Bz
or loss for impairment losses 2 &% 2 B
of available-for-sale financial 7 $8:4%
assets 4,078 - - 4,078
Reclassification of remaining ~ ##% MERRFELE
interest from disposal group 2 HHE BRI E
held for sale to available-for- ~ HZEAIEEE
sale financial assets SHEE 7,076 - (7,076) —
At end of year RER 2,998 11,454 = 14,452
® Include gains or losses for ~ (#)/BLIER RS E K
assets held at the end of REEEZW
reporting period HEE (4,078) (2,069) - (6,147)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNNA=1HI F/F

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on
level 3: (Continued)

The total gains recognised in other comprehensive
income are presented in surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The total losses recognised in profit or loss including those
for assets held at end of reporting period is presented
in cost of sales and service rendered and loss for the
year from discontinued operation in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 30 June 2016:

The Group's financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board of
Directors at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AFEE (&)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (©)
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 30 June 2016: (Continued)

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly as below:

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs
L fEER AHBERARE
Private equity investments ~ Market comparable Average price
classified as available-for- approach book multiple
sale financial assets ) ) ‘ N
NERAHNESHEE MEIELRA FHEREREEH
ZIAEERE
Average price
sales multiple:
THERHEEEH
Book value
AREE
Annual sales
FHER

Discount for lack of
marketability

Rz MHRBIENR

Fair market value of Combination of market  Estimated useful life
plant and machinery comparable approach
and cost replacement
- _approach \
BEEAEZATHE TELBARNAEE (GHAERED
EZaf
Adjusting factor
HERE

During the years ended 30 June 2015 and 2016, there
were no changes in the valuation techniques used.
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FIB R HETEER 2 EXTAE
KRB ABIBETI2HEIIMT

Effect on

fair value

for increase
Value of inputs

12 ey A BlE
BE HAVEZ¥E

0.6890 Increase
(2015: 0.6745)

0.6890 &N
(ZZ—HF:0.6745)

0.7886 Increase
(2015; 0.7898)
0.7886 M
(ZZ—HF:0.7898)

HK$30,563,000 Increase
(2015: HK$49,644,000)
7 1£30,563,0007T  #EH0
(ZE—RF B
49,644,0007T )

HK$49,077,000 Increase
(2015: HK$41,135,000)
785 #549,077,0007T A0
(Z2—RF: B
41,135,0007T )

2490% Decrease
(2015: 29.75%)
2490% JEAD
(ZZ—FR%F:2975%)

10 to 14 years Increase
(2015: 10 to 14 years)

10FEE4E(ZT—F #0
F10FER145F)

70% to 95% Increase
(2015: 74% to 100%)
70%ZE95% &
(ZE—RHF :74%=
100% )

RBE_Z—RER-F—~FAf
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REVENUE

The Group’s revenue which represents sales of goods to
customers, subcontracting fee income and revenue from
provision of on-line shopping, advertising and media related

services are as follows:

Sales of goods

Subcontracting fee income

On-line shopping, advertising and
media related service income

Representing:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation
(trading and retail of apparel and
related accessories) (note 14)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #EHZ—F
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8. WA
REBZWA  EEFCEREE 28
BWARIREG EEY - EE REREEE
IRIEZWADTIT :
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
EmigE 131,155 154,540
DEEWA 5,826 /1
REREY - BERIERE
TE 8 AR TS UL A 3,000 3,114
139,981 157,654
KA :
FELE TS 139,981 121,251
BRI TS
(BEENTERM X
MR MH) (AiE14) - 36,403
139,981 157,654
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hftilz
2016 2015
—B-ARF —ZT-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Consultancy fee income BB - 2,476
Distribution right fee income DIEEBA - 696
Design fee income FETBWA 63 390
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BEREEZ
plant and equipment Wz 3,120 -
Interest income FEBA 161 946
Participation fee income SEEPA - 331
Reversal of allowance for receivables JE UK BR SR B 1 B 1,055 1,318
Reversal of allowance for inventories FEREERD - 1,425
Reversal of provision for EERMEE
employee benefit obligation B E R E 1,408 3
Government grants (note) BB (H122) 2,634 3,338
Sundry income MBI A 407 588
8,848 11,511
Representing: KA :
Continuing operations REIREER 8,848 7,256
Discontinued operation (note 14) BRI EER (Hat14) - 4,255
8,848 11,511
Note: Government grants were received as refund of value-added tax and Htat - B WCHRBRT # B RIS E B R AR 2 iR
export duty. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies Ko ZSMMWENERZR GG HIAS
attached to the grants. B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #ZE —F— NFNA=1HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three reportable segments as follows:

Swimwear and

Manufacturing and trading
garment of swimwear and garment
products
Apparel and related

Trading and retail of apparel
accessories and related accessories
(discontinued operation)

On-line shopping and

Provision of on-line shopping,
advertising advertising and media related

services

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include other
income, finance costs, impairment of goodwill, loss on de-
registration of a subsidiary and corporate administrative
and other operating expenses. Segment assets do not
include available-for-sale financial assets, club debenture,
goodwill and other assets for general administrative use.
Segment liabilities do not include other liabilities for general
administrative use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10.

Information about reportable segment profit or loss,

112

assets and liabilities:

Swimwear
and
garment
KE R RS
HK$'000
BETT
Year ended 30 June 2016 BZE-B-1F
ay: = ‘|‘ HIEEE
Revenue from external customers ~ RBIREF Z WA 136,981
Segment (loss)/profit A (BR),/HEH (15,217)
Depreciation e 7,987
Income tax (credit)/expense Frias (%) /&R (339)
Additions to segment RENBIERD
non-current assets BE 15,984
As at 30 June 2016 R-E-R"EXA=1H
Segment assets DEHEE 107,112
Segment liabilities nNEHEE 62,863
Year ended 30 June 2015 BE-_Z-1F
AA=THLEE
Revenue from external customers REMAEE ZWA 118,137
Segment profit/(loss) A,/ (EE) 57,077
Depreciation nE 2,262
Gain on deemed disposal of RIELE—AKE DT
an associate 2 W 61,628
Share of losses of an associate E’éf\{ﬁ—ﬁﬂ?’ﬁ%@ Al B8 8,070
Income tax expense/(credit) EHER,/ (K&) 635
Additions to segment REDHBIERE
non-current assets BE 16,320
As at 30 June 2015 R-BE-REAA=1H
Segment assets DENEE 90,616
Segment liabilities AEBE 38,634
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DEER ()

HRES RS BEERABZABER:

Apparel
and related
accessories
(Discontinued
operation)
R &5 %
R4
(B#£1E
REXHK)
HK$'000
BETT

36,403
(14,128)
1,358

On-line
shopping and
advertising

REBNR
B
HK$'000
BETT

3,000
1,437

817

1,243
686

3,114
(2,673)
284

(816)

825

1,689
845

Total

At
HK$ 000
BETT

139,981
(13,780)
7,987
478

15,984

108,355
63,549

157,654
40,276
3,904

61,628
8,070
(181)
19,286

92,305
39,479




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNNA=1HI F/F

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 EER (£&)

Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss: DEBMARBE ZHER:
2016 2015
—E—-RE¥ —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEF T BT oT
Revenue N
Total revenue of reportable segments Al R4 o U A LR E 139,981 157,654
Elimination of discontinued operation R BRI E R
(note 14) (Htit14) - (36,403)
Consolidated revenue from continuing REFELEEBLZ
operations ma A
139,981 (/112150
Profit or loss g | = F ]
Total profit or loss of reportable segments 7] ¥R & 7 3F 18 25 42 E (13,780) 40,276
Impairment of goodwill B4 (37,900) (282,304)
Loss on de-registration of a subsidiary i —FEME AR 2 EE (450) -
Other profit or loss H )i A1) = &5 18 577 (10,152)
Elimination of discontinued operation HBRERIEREE
(note 14) (B1at14) - 9,255
Consolidated loss for the year from REFBREEK 2
continuing operations FANEESER (51,553) (242,925)

EEEE (ZER) ARXA | —F—RX

FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities:

Assets BE

Total assets of reportable segments A $RE 7 B2
Goodwill EE
Available-for-sale financial assets Al E 2wl
Club debenture EMES
Other assets Hi&EE
Consolidated total assets HEEELE
Liabilities afE

Total liabilities of reportable segments AmEN AL
Other liabilities EmaE
Consolidated total liabilities meEafEeE

Apart from the above, the totals of other material items
disclosed in the segment information are the same as the

consolidated totals.

114
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R

C

10. 2 HEHR (&)

B B A

== EITN

PN

THEEREBEZHER:
2016 2015
—2-RF —T—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Al 108,355 92,305
101,064 138,964
2,998 2,998
50 -
8,028 14,190
220,495 248,457
B 63,549 39,479
2,042 2,706
65,591 42,185
Br EaiEN ROBERBEE 2 HMEKR

BHER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNNA=1HI F/F

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 EER (£&)

BERH

Geographical information:

AEERBINEF WA (HEFER
o) RESERBEEEN (REEMED

The Group's revenue from external customers by location of
the customers and information about its non-current assets by

location of assets are detailed below: )RR
Revenue Non-current assets
KA FRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RF —E-RE “T-1F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT JBETFT BEFT BT
Hong Kong B 59,928 37,489 105,886 141,761
PRC except HongKong B (BB KBRS

and Macau 13 - 2,019 2,456
Kingdom of Cambodia RIEETH 5,826 - 23,799 14,800
United Kingdom 4| 16,932 25,916 - L
Spain [ipi%s 16,136 20,803 - f
Sweden Vi £ 15,391 18,084 - i
Macau ol - 1,206 - U
United States of America & 278 5,197 - 1
Netherlands I 4,954 5,829 - 4
Israel el 2,682 4,970 - “
France gl 620 832 - .
Denmark 5 353 2,732 - L
Ireland ERW 11,279 21,994 - 5
Canada mnex 272 9,874 - -
Australia BN 4,381 = - -
Others Hi 936 2,728 - =
Discontinued operation B [HF & XK - (36,403) - ‘
Consolidated total GEBE 139,981 121,251 131,704 159,017

EXEEE (ZR) ARXA | —B-—RFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

11.

116

Revenue from major customers:

Swimwear and garment segment
Customer a
Customer b
Customer ¢

FINANCE COSTS

Finance lease charges
Interest on bank loans
Interest on promissory notes
Interest on other loans

Representing:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation (note 174)

10. 2 HEHR (&)

REFEEZFZWA:

2016 2015
—2-RF —T—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

K EE M R 5 50
EFa N/A 21,994
=Fb 15,391 17,791
BPFc 53,748 N/A

11. BI R A
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—TEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
BEHEE - 1
RITERF A - 458
SNSRI - 4,297
EMERFE 525 421
525 5,177
D=

FEEEER 525 4,296
B BT (Kt 14) - 831
525 5,177

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNNA=1HI F/F

12. GAIN ON DEEMED DISPOSAL OF AN ASSOCIATE

— RICOTEX INDUSTRIAL COMPANY LIMITED
("RICOTEX")

Pursuant to a supplemental agreement (“Supplemental
Agreement”) dated 30 June 2015 entered into between
Ratio Knitting Factory Limited (“Ratio”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company which held 45% of the issued
share capital of Ricotex, Billions Field Development Limited
and All Full Profit Limited (together holds 55% of the issued
share capital of Ricotex), the maximum number of directors
of Ricotex was increased from 3 to 5 and 3 out of 5 directors
should be nominated by Ratio. A quorum for a meeting was
also increased to at least 3 directors. Board resolution was
passed on the same date to appoint the 2 additional directors
nominated by Ratio.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
obtained control in Ricotex by virtue of the Supplemental
Agreement, and as a result, Ricotex ceased to be an associate
of the Group on 30 June 2015 and became and was
accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company effective from
that date. The Group's interests in Ricotex were re-measured
based on the fair value of the shares of Ricotex held by the
Group on 30 June 2015. Accordingly, a gain on deemed
disposal of approximately HK$61,628,000 was recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2015.

12. BEHE-HBHEQATD2WE-FS

ERXER2AF ([FHE])

REBEMNEBEBEBRER AR ([AME] A2
AZEEMBRAR EEBMNaEDET
IR 245% ) - B ERAR N E RKmF
ERAR(EHFENREDEITREAZ
55% )R]V HE AT —RAF/,A=1H
2wz ((Hamzl) AeEEEA
BERA=RENERG HADZ=H
EXEBMNEIRE R IEATEABINE
mEzEL=%2FF -NEAR EESRBER
BE UEENERBZSIREBESE -

RAREERA NEEEBHTEES
FMEEzEsE Bt MEER=ZE—h
ERAZTETBAASBZHBE AR
WEZBRKAERARZKBARWIES
AARZHBRARIAR - AEBRFSEZ
EEUAEBRR _ZE—HFNA=1THF
BHeEROZAFEAEESEHHE-
T 2 P e P e
NRIEHE Z Wz 475 %61,628,0007TE
PRIE S N HERR o

2@l (2R ARAR | —B2-xEER [ [ 7]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 13. FRIBHER, (ER)
2016 2015
= —T—4F
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT T

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNERRR I — BB IS

Provision for the year F NG - 1,397
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (33) -~
(33) 1,397

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ BNHARS 1B — B> E 1SR

Provision for the year FARHE 32 33
Deferred tax (note 31) REFLIA (H/5231) 479 (1,611)
Income tax expense/(credit) FrSMiER,/ (&%) 478 (181)
Representing: KA :

Continuing operations FEICE T 478 (181)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the HARASEERF R &EERT R - Bt
Group has no assessable profit for the year. The amount BAELHEENSEHBE - BEZE-_T—1
provided for the year ended 30 June 2015 was calculated at FRA=THLEFEZSBIIBRERZTF
16.5% based on the assessable profit for that year. J& 2 FER T4 M AR T 16.5%5T H
Tax charges on profits assessable elsewhere have been H Ath b % 2 f& SR T i M A IB T IR AN &R B 4%
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in ERGHEBERZBTRR UREE M
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, WITER ZEREOE-

interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

1 1 8 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense/(credit)
and the product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong

Profits Tax rate is as follows:

Loss before tax
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation (note 74)

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)

Tax effect of income that is not taxable

Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible

Tax effect of other temporary differences
not recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not
previously recognised

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

Overprovision in prior years

Income tax expense/(credit)

For the year ended 30 June 2016

B 5t A 185 18
RAEKZEEK

ERIERERR (Hit14)

BEHBHNEHE16.5%
(ZZE—FHF:165%)
FTE 2 MIE

BEZRRBA ZRERE

AR A 2 R E

AEREMBERERZ
MG T E
AERHABE M E
ERBEFERERL
BMEBRZHGEE
MEBARTRMEZZE
BEFEBEREG

FISHER/ (H2)

EXEEE (ZR) ARXA | —B-—RFFH

e MR AR A

HE-F-—AEAASTALEE

13. iSHiERA, (E%) (&)

THRMEHER, (HR) LERTAEE
FABRBNEREAEEE I

2016 2015
—2-RF —F—4F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFRT BETT
(51,075) (243,106)
- (10,754)
(51,075) (253,860)
(8,427) (41,887)
(7,629) (10,450)
15,152 51,763
(260) (182)
1,738 1,618
(74) (1,054)

11 11

(33) 7

478 (181)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 28 July
2014 entered into between a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Synergy Chain Limited (“Synergy”), and
an independent third party, Synergy disposed of 27.3%
interests in Charmston (Holdings) Limited (“Charmston”),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong, at a consideration
of HK$10,000,000. Charmston was engaged in investment
holding, with its subsidiaries engaged in trading and retail
of apparel and related accessories in Hong Kong. The
disposal was completed on 21 October 2014 and the Group
discontinued its trading and retail of apparel and related
accessories business.

The loss for the year from the discontinued operation is
analysed as follows:

Loss of discontinued operation ERIEEEEE 2 B
Gain on disposal of discontinued HEBRIEREEBH 2
operation Wz

1 20 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016

14. CRIEREXEK

BIEAR R 2 2 &K B R F)Synergy Chain
Limited ([Synergy | ) B2 — & @755 = 7]
YZHHAZZE—NFLtA=Z+N\HZ
B &% ' Synergy AR B4 #10,000,000
THERGE (RE)BR AR ([4E])
(—FREBFEMKILZAR]) Z227.3%HE
o BENEREERER  HWB AR
EUBHEBERTERMEMEBREM - H
EEFERT—NWEF+AZT+—HEKK
AEEDKIEEEE T ERM RABE
-

REERIEREXEBZFANERD T
T

2016 2015
—E—-XF —E—hHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
- (10,754)

- 1,499

- (9,255)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR A

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

The results of the discontinued operation for the period from
1 July 2014 to 21 October 2014, which have been included in

consolidated profit or loss, were as follows:

Revenue (note 8)
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income (note 9)

Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs (note 11)

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

During the period from 1 July 2014 to 21 October
2014, Charmston and its subsidiaries paid approximately
HK$175,000 in respect of operating activities, paid
approximately HK$1,867,000 in respect of investing activities
and received approximately HK$5,232,000 in respect of

financing activities.

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #EHZ—F

—NEFENHA=FHILFE

14. CRIEEEEL (&)
BrtAfrE B2 RBE S —NE+A—
HREZE-_Z—NF+A-+—BHILHERK

ZERIEBERBZEEWT:

WA (B1:E8)
Fioh=J DN

E7
H Wzt (A1629)
HEMX

THER

@B ER
BB (A1)

BB Al 5 1B
FRiSHiE M

FREE

i =
e

EEEE (ZR) ARXA

PN
K

AlE

gl A =l o

HK$°000
BT T

36,403

(11,387)

25,016

4,255
(21,015)

(18,129)

(9,873)
(881)

(10,754)

(10,754)

A=

+7E|_|J:HHFEI‘1W 'T%H&ﬁWEA

| =% —

HE S 475%175,0007T ° Fh
& TS A7 51,867,000 R LR E
¥ 752 U E 4078 #55,232,0007T ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

15. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 15. FREE

The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) AEEZFABBEHNER (5FA) THE

122

the following: B :
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
BESEEY BRLSEER i
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-AE| ZT-nE | ZB-RE | ZT-RF | ZB-RE | ZZ-1F
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BETFT
Auditor's remuneration I 870 800 - 127 870 927
Cost of inventories sold BHERSHA 133,834 97,247 - 11,387 133,834 108,634
Depreciation N 7,987 2,944 - - 7,987 2,944
Reversal of allowance for inventories T E& &M
(included in other income) (FEAR A ) - (802) - - - (802)
Allowance for receivables WFTIERE 1,283 1427 - - 1,283 1427
Reversal of allowance for receivables — JEUE T8 R & m) (1,055) (1,318) - - (1,055) (1,318)
Loss on disposal of available-forsale ~ HEMHHELREE L
financial assets B - 789 - - - 789
Impairment loss of available-for-sale ~ AItHESBEE Y
financial assets REEE - 4,078 - = - 4,078
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE KR REEZ
plant and equipment (&) /B8 (3,120) 147 - = (3,120) 147
Write off of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment B - 73 - - - 73
Net foreign exchange losses MNEBBTFE 43 335 - 2 43 357
Operating lease charges forland and T REF 2 EEHERT
buildings (including contingent (BRAREENABE
rentals of approximately HK$Nil (ZB—H%:/5%13,000
(2015: HK$13,000)) 7)) 4,619 3,145 - 12,782 4,619 15,927
Staff costs including directors’ BIRKA
emoluments (REEEMS)
Salaries, bonus and allowances Ho AR 58,067 33,863 - 11,091 58,067 44,954
Retirement benefit scheme RINERI B
contributions 2,013 2,618 - 537 2,013 3,155
(Reversal)/provision for employee EERNEMEL
benefit obligations (BR)/%fE (1,408) 1,305 - - (1,408) 1,305
58,672 37,786 - 11,628 58,672 49,414

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016




15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #EZ—F

There is a reversal of allowance for receivables of
approximately HK$1,055,000 (2015: HK$1,318,000) for the
year, being the result of persistent effort on the management

of quality of trade receivables and certain long overdue debts

are recovered during the year.

Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs, depreciation and

operating lease charges of approximately HK$50,678,000
(2015: HK$24,214,000) which are included in the amounts

disclosed separately above.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, bonus and allowances

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

(Reversal)/provision for employee benefit
obligations

¥ra  TEALRRRE

BRERIGHEI 5K

BE®AMEELZ
(BE),

(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans

Contributions totalling approximately HK$10,594,000
(2015: HK$10,869,000) were payable to the fund at the

year-end.

EEEE (ZR) ARXA

e MR wmAR M

—NEFENHA=FHILFE

15. FREBE (£Z)

REEREEF Iﬁz}%fﬁ}ﬁf@iﬁ%ﬁﬂ%
105500075( T—hF:%%1,318,000
TL) EreERREARFES NRNE SRR
ﬁAZEEEE&L&E ST REBEER
e

EHEFTERABIEE TRA TERKLE
e 4 7%B#50,678,000 (—E—F
&F B #24.214,0000T) © JhEF A X o R
W EEA -

16. EEEFBEX

2016 2015
AL e~ il
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BEFT BT T
55,302 42,110
1,995 3,137
(1,408) 1,305
55,889 46,552

() BifE-EBHARTE

EEE H 3K 48 B #4978 510,594,000
yjoh (o ﬂii 75 1%10,869,0007T, )
T)ﬂﬁé?iﬁﬁtlﬁéffﬁ

| Z2—REFFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HI FE

16. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included one (2015: one) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
note 17. The emoluments of the remaining four (2015:
four) individuals are set out below:

Basic salaries and allowances HARF & FoERL
Compensation for loss of office BB mES
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAE FFT IR

contributions

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HK$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 7B 2 81,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 &% 1,000,0017C % /8% 1,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7&#2,500,001 7T % 4 #3,000,0007T

16. EERABEX (&)

(b) EEREFMAL

FR AEEBRERSFH

AL BERE

—Z(ZT—RF:—R)EF HH
EERME17P 252 DA AR -
HEHHpmE (ZE—RF - mE)ALZ

FESIOT

2016 2015
—2-RF —F—4F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFRT BETT
5,292 6,451

- 69

72 66

5,364 6,586

BREHINE A T8 :

Number of individuals

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 & ¥3,500,001 7T £ % #4,000,0007T -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016

17. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director is set out below:

e MR wRAR N

HE-E-—AEAA=TALEE

17. EERBZ R ES

(a) E=FHM

BEFEZHMEIIWT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREALARANBARES 2 EAARUME

Employer's contribution
Estimated money to a retirement
Fees value of other benefits benefit scheme Total
e EtERIZ %A EEEAENTEER azt
(Note ()
(Hit)
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE | Z5-0F | ZB-AE | Z5-0% | 2B-AF | ZE-R% | ZE2-RE | Z2-n%
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BEFL | EEFr | BEFL | BETn | BEFL | EEFr | BEFL | EETn
Executive Directors BiTES

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph AREEE 600 600 1877 1,956 18 18 2,495 2,574
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George SR EE - - - - - - - -
600 600 1877 1,956 18 18 2,495 2,574

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex BREE 9% 9% - K - o 9% 9%
Mr. Lee Chung Mong, John FEXAE 96 9% - - - - 9 %
Mr. Tam Wing Kin EREEE 96 9% - - - - 9% %
288 288 - - - = 288 288
888 888 1877 1,956 18 18 2,783 2,862
Note: (i) Estimated money values of other benefits include rent et () EtEflz At BEeEe A

paid, share options, insurance premium, etc.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors

waived any emoluments during the year (2015: Nil).

EEEE (ZR) ARXA

& BRE RRESE-

FAMEERITRABSEMESN
ZEFAHFH (T —HF:E) -

—E-REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HI FE

17. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 17. BRI = R #ER (£)

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company and
the director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

18. DIVIDENDS 18.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: Nil).

19. LOSS PER SHARE 19.
(a) From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$47,251,000 (2015: HK$245,444,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,028,526,030 (2015: 4,931,793,790) in issue during the
year.

Z 26 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016

(b) EERXRS ZHRENFZEKRR

iy

ARRPRERT L BAREEE AR R
ARREERESFTZHEEALTRES
ERRAEEFEAE S AR AER
IARNFEEMERDARIEAR
7 ZHREH-

Hﬁ /%\

BEETEEMBE_T—RFA=TH
I FERNEFMBRER(ZE—RF ) -

BRER

(a) REFECLEXBRERIEREXRK

FRELXER

RARERE AEEEREAREBEIIR
BARAIHEE AEBEZFEREBENS
¥47,251,0007T ( = =8 & B i
245,444,0007T) RN FREIT 2 EiR
B 2 hn#E S 19 £45,028,526,0300% (=
T — R4 :4,931,793,7900% ) 5t & -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016

19. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

(a)

(b)

From continuing and discontinued operations
(Continued)

Diluted loss per share

The exercise of the Group’s outstanding convertible non-
voting preference shares and the effect of all potential
ordinary shares would be anti-dilutive for the year ended
30 June 2016. The exercise of the Group’s outstanding
convertible non-voting preference shares would be anti-
dilutive and there were no dilutive potential ordinary
shares for the Company’s options granted to an investor
for the year ended 30 June 2015. Diluted loss per
share was the same as the basic loss per share from the
continuing and discontinued operations for the years
ended 30 June 2016 and 2015.

From continuing operations

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
from continuing operations attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$47,251,000 (2015:
HK$241,664,000) and the denominator used is the
same as that detailed above for basic loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations.

EXEEE (ZR) ARXAE | —B-RFFH

e MR wRAR N

HE-E-—AEAA=TALEE

19. BREE (&)

(a)

(b)

REFBECERBROCRIEEERE
(#&)

FREBEEIR

RBE-_T—RFA=THL*F
[ ATE AR E 2 i RTTE A R A 8
BREERBEBREMBEBEEEBRZE
EREEREEER -BE-F—1
FRA=ZTHLEFE TEAEEZ
fe AR 1T 5 AT 40 AR R AR SRR 1B SR RO B
BRESBIERMEMBEBRARAZE
T EREEZBREZEEEE L
Bl -BE T -RFR T 0%
NAZTBELEFE BELEXBR
ERIEREXH 8RB EERES
PR B iR AR R o

REFECERE
FREXER

RAREE ARIGEEREXREIEBTIIR
BARARBEAEABEREFELS
X% 2 FAEE A %47,251,0007T
(ZZ—F1%F: #%241,664,0007T) 5+
B RAERZ B8 EXXATFMET
BRABBCEEBRERIECERE
Bz EBREAEBEFERAZ S EER-
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 EZ—F

—NFNA=THIFE

19. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b)

(0

125

From continuing operations (Continued)

Diluted loss per share

The exercise of the Group's outstanding convertible non-
voting preference shares and the effect of all potential
ordinary shares would be anti-dilutive for the year ended
30 June 2016. The exercise of the Group’s outstanding
convertible non-voting preference shares would be anti-
dilutive and there were no dilutive potential ordinary
shares for the Company’s options granted to an investor
for the year ended 30 June 2015. Diluted loss per
share was the same as the basic loss per share from the
continuing operations for the years ended 30 June 2016
and 2015.

From discontinued operation

Because there was no discontinued operation during the
year ended 30 June 2016, no basic or diluted loss per
share from discontinued operation was presented for the
year ended 30 June 2016.

Basic loss per share from the discontinued operation for
the year ended 30 June 2015 was HKO0.077 cent per
share, based on the loss for the year from discontinued
operation attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$3,780,000 and the denominator used
was the same as that detailed above for basic loss per
share from continuing and discontinued operations.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016

19. BREE (&)

(b) REFEKERK (&

(0)

IR BER IR

REBEZE_Z-—XEA=THILLHF
817 ﬁZFEEZr'ﬁkfﬂiTiﬁHﬁﬂ
RERBERKMABESBRZF
EREAERESER-BZE_T—1
FRA=ZTHLEFE TEEAKEZ
MARTTER AR ERZRE LR A
EREEIERAREBEEBERARRZE
?—%&iéfﬁzﬁﬁ@%z%ﬁ%ﬁ%%
BR-BEZZT—"FRZZT—HF
NA=ZTHILEEHEREXK 2B
IR BB R G IR AR EEMER -

RESRIERERK

HREBE_E—AF~NA=THItHF
Fwwﬁaﬂtw RS A E 2
HEZE —NESNAZTHLEFE
XEEN¢<%%% BREARSE
SEEE

HE_ZT—AF~A=THLEFE"

REERIEBEXRE 2 BREREE
RER0.07781l - Z BB TIREBARA
AEAARMLEKREERIEBEREZ
FNEELE®3,780,0007TE & - &

FHEM 2 HEE b Arsh s B R e
SECS R R DR EREE &

PREAREERER 22 AR -



() From discontinued operation (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR wmAR M

19. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2016

19. 8RERE (&)

The exercise of the Group's outstanding convertible non-

voting preference shares for the year ended 30 June

2015 would be anti-dilutive and there were no dilutive

potential ordinary shares for the Company’s options

granted to an investor. Diluted loss per share was same as

the basic loss per share from the discontinued operation
for the year ended 30 June 2015.

20. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive

income for the year:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Fair value changes of available-for-sale
financial assets

Reclassification adjustments for
amounts transferred to profit or loss
of available-for-sale financial assets
Disposal
Impairment losses

Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment

Other comprehensive income
for the year

BEBHRBRELL
ERER

A HESREEL
DFER

A HESRAEL
BRETHREIERL
ENpERE
HE
HERSR

EftNE BERRRL
Bt

EREMZENE

(0 RECKRILREXK (&)

HE-F-AEAASTALEE

BE_Z-AFAA=1THLFE"
TEAREZ HARTTREAREERR
BB AEA REEER LR ES
AARRZE T —RIREE ZBRE
ZEEEEERR - BE-_FT—AF
NAZTHLESFE REDKRIERE
X SR EEERESRAENER

I
20. Hfh 2 HEk &=
EHFANEMEZAWREE D 2 HE 7
&
2016 2015

—E-RE IZ-1%
Amount Amount Amount Amount
before tax Tax after tax before tax Tax after tax
BRBR2E BE  BEASE | REjeE HE  Ri%kes
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(552) - (552) i i i
- - - (4,078) - (4,078)
- - - 443 - 443
- - - 4,078 - 4,078
2,952 (665) 2,287 1,621 (405) 1,216
2,400 (665) 1,735 2,064 (405) 1,659
wxEy (2R ARAT ) —2-xEE [ 90
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e B RRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

130

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

21. X -BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
B -HER
HEWEEE B R e BAERE AE ot
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS$000 HK$000
BEFT BEFT BETFT BEFT BEFT
Cost or valuation BAESEE
At 1 July 2014 RZE-NE+A—H 572 3,103 2,243 1,810 7,128
Additions B 1,544 - 390 = 1934
Write off/disposals s/ HE (88) = (827) = (915)
Surplus on revaluation EhR - (448) = - (448)
Business combination EHBEH 5,361 8,799 136 504 14,800
At 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 RZZ—1%F
~NA=TER
“Z-AFtA—H 7,389 11,454 1,942 2,314 23,099
Additions 1R 6,718 7,648 627 991 15,984
Write off/disposals s/ e - - (671) (500) (1,171)
Surplus on revaluation SHEH - (2,337) - - (2,337)
At 30 June 2016 RIZ—RE
~A=1A 14,107 16,765 1,898 2,805 35,575
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment
At 1July 2014 R-E-NF+tA—AH 186 - 1,674 1,413 3,273
Charge for the year FREY 133 2,069 344 398 2,944
Write off/disposals /e (15) - (675) - (690)
Write back on revaluation EREERE = (2,069) = = (2,069)
At 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 RZZ—1%F
~NA=TER
“Z-AFtA—H 304 - 1,343 1,811 3,458
Charge for the year FRRAX 2,169 5,289 227 302 7,987
Write off/disposals s/ & - - (671) (500) (1171)
Write back on revaluation EftRER - (5,.289) - - (5,289)
At 30 June 2016 RZE-R
~A=1A 2473 - 899 1,613 4,985
Carrying amount REE
At 30 June 2016 RZE-—RF
~NA=TH 11,634 16,765 999 1,192 30,590
At 30 June 2015 RZIZ-1%
~A=Z1H 7,085 11,454 599 503 19,641
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNNA=1HI F/F

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 21. X -BERRE (#)
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30 June 2016 of the FIEER-_ZE—REXA=THZKAR
above assets is as follows: BEEITHAT:
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
BR-EER
HENEEE BE R BOERE AE k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BYTT BYTFT BYF BETT BYETT
At cost BIE 14,107 - 1,898 2,805 18,810
At valuation BitE - 16,765 - - 16,765
14,107 16,765 1,898 2,805 35,575
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30 June 2015 of the FIEERZE—RAFRAZTHZKA
above assets is as follows: EREEITMT :
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
Bl RER
HENEEE TR 7 Rt 2% N AE Rk
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
BEFT BETFT BEFT BETFT BEFT
At cost BENE 7,389 - 1,942 2314 11,645
At valuation BihE = 11,454 = L 11,454
7,389 11,454 1,942 2,314 23,099

wxEn (2R ARAT | —2-xEER [ 3]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 21. X -BERRE (&)

The Group's plant and machinery were revalued at fair market REEZRE MR HE L EEAERTT
value on 30 June 2016 by reference to market evidence RENEBRAR (ZT—RF - RENE
of recent transactions for similar plant and machinery by BARABR)R-ZE—NFANA=THZRRA
GA Valuation Limited (2015: GA Valuation Limited), an U E ke r B s SR HEATFM
independent firm of professional valuers. BENIGE-

The carrying amount of the Group's plant and machinery fiol AR N8 25t T & RO B B 18 51 Bk -
would have been approximately HK$13,946,000 (2015: AEEHBEREESZ2EREEBNRE
HK$9,577,000) had they been stated at cost less accumulated #13,946,000c (=T —HF: B K
depreciation and impairment losses. 9,577,0007T ) ©

Z 32 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR wmAR M

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNA=1HI F/F

22. GOODWILL 22. B8
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at REBaFRBzZEERNBER S RER
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that HAXBEREBEH2REEELESBMU B
business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had ADEEZEEBREEMAT:

been allocated as follows:

Provision of
on-line shopping
advertising and
media related

services - Luxey Swimwear - Apparel
Online Solutions Easy Time Garment and and related
Limited Trading Limited swimwear - accessories -
(“Luxey Online”) (“Easy Time") Ricotex Charmston Total

(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c) (note (d))

Rt LBy

EERER

B BRAS —

EZMEEE X% Easy Time
BEAT (€% Trading Limited R# Rk R4 R AR RS

@rE®l) ([Easy Time]) -FlgE B8 — 4L 4 bl
(Hiit6) (Hiztb) (i) (Hizt@)
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
BETT BETT BEFT BETT BEFT
Cost BAME
At 1 July 2014 R-_ZT-—NE+A—H 75,343 640,966 - 28,793 745,102
Business combination Yl - L 61,457 i 61,457
Write off on disposal of Charmston 1 & £ &F B 4 5 - - + (28,793) (28,793)
At30June 2015, 1July2015and  R=T—REAA=1+H:
30 June 2016 ZZT-RftA-HK
ZZ-RFAA=1A 75,343 640,966 61,457 - 777,766
Accumulated impairment losses 23t H EFE
At 1 July 2014 R-_T—NE+HA—H 69,093 287,405 - 28,793 385,291
Impairment loss REEE 6,250 276,054 = - 282,304
Write off on disposal of Charmston 1 ! & A & B4 84 - - - (28,793) (28,793)
At30June2015and 1July 2015  RZT—HFSA=+H
R=F—hFtA—H Fr343 563,459 - - 638,802
Impairment loss REEE - 37,900 - - 37,900
At 30 June 2016 R-E-—R"EXA=1H 75,343 601,359 - - 676,702
Carrying amount HREE
At 30 June 2016 RZZE—"F~A=+H - 39,607 61,457 - 101,064
At 30 June 2015 R-E-RF A=1+H - 77,507 61,457 - 138,964

FxEy (2R ARAR | —2-~EE8 [ 33



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

22. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

134

The recoverable amount of the provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services CGU was determined
from value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth
rate and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the period.
The Group estimates discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU. The growth rate is based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical area in which
the business of the CGU operates. Budgeted gross margin and
revenue are based on past practices and expectations on market

development.

During the six months ended 31 December 2014, the Group
prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets approved by the directors for the next five years with
residual period using the growth rate of 5%. This rate did not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets. The
rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the provision of
on-line shopping, advertising and media related services CGU was
13.22%. Based on the past performance, the Group had revised its
cash flow forecasts and the recoverable amount for this CGU was
negligible. The goodwill allocated to this CGU was thus considered
as non-recoverable. The goodwill has therefore been fully impaired
through recognition of an impairment loss against goodwill of
approximately HK$6,250,000 during the six months ended 31
December 2014 and year ended 30 June 2015.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016

22. BE (&)

Bt

(a)

REZLEEY BEREREBRE 2 RSE
HEEM T RE SR DRIBEREETER
MEE- - EREEHEZTERRESAARNZ
R EEERNAEENERIRAFR A
SENMEE R REEARBAMEREE - Z
B X BRI IS HEEEEEEZ G
AR EREReELEM AR FERR -
BEXTIARSELEUMEEEB 2R
ZREAFIOQBERERRQELE - FHEERN K
FRATIABEE REMHERZBRS
HAE o

RBEE-_Z-—HWNF+-_A=+—H 1A
A ARBEREZRERETEANIZRLH
EEMEZARARAFUBEEURGTHIM
FAS% 2 REFHE B XL RBEE
M FHRERR AREERAR
iz FEY BEEREBABRBRSES
BRI ZTERRSREZLLER13.22% < BF
BARR ASEEEIRBEeELENY
BERmETER KA R E €58 A 0] 2R Tat o
PRELBESELENZHEREERAT
AE-Alt AEREBEEZT—ENF+=
A=+—HERNERRBE=ZT—HF~A
=T HIEFEEBERDEREEBLBE
6,250,0007T B2 & HUR(E °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016

22. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The recoverable amount of the swimwear CGU is determined from
value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculation are similar to the value in use calculation of provision
of on-line shopping, advertising and media related services CGU as
stated in note (a) above.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
(2015: five) years with residual period using the growth rate of
3.99% (2015: 3.99%). This rate does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows from the Group'’s activities of manufacturing
and trading of high-end swimwear and related garment products is
14.57% (2015: 14.96%).

Due to the expecting of economic downturn of European market,
the orders on hand for high-end swimwear for the PRC factory
decreased and is expected to decrease in the coming year. The
Group has thus revised its cash flow forecasts for this CGU. The
recoverable amount of this CGU is approximately HK$48,729,000
(2015: HK$82,348,000) as at 30 June 2016, which is lower than
the carrying amount of this CGU. The goodwill has therefore
been reduced to its recoverable amount through recognition of an
impairment loss against goodwill of approximately HK$37,900,000
(2015: HK$276,054,000) during the year.

EXEE (ZR) ARXAE | —B-AFFH

e MR wmAR M

HE-F-AEAASTALEE

22. BHE (&)

Hrat: (&)

(b)

B SELEM 2 P IRE S FR T EREA
EBEEE - EREEFEEMERNERRER
U EXXH FE(a) AT 5 AR 2 IR AR LB -

EEREREERGESELEN 2ERE
Bt &%

AEBBRZESRERAIERARES
HEZRERE (ZE—RE: AFE)HPKE
BB THERA39% (ZE—R1F:
3.99% ) 2 ERHE - AL RN R EBEH
sz FHRBERER - ARBEARE R
CEEREESmARRABREER Y
¥B2EAREREZ LR E1457% (ZF
—FEF:1496%) °

HARTEHBMNTSEETNE FEIBRZS
XK FHETERS RBHREBRD -
I AREBBITHREELABNZRER
ERA-MREEEBEMRT—NERA
=+ HzAKE &L AEE48,729,000 7T

—T— A4 B%82,348,0007T) ¢ EER I
BeEABNZERE AL AERER
175 308 T 58 7 R (B 5 18 4075 537,900,000
(ZZ—FHF: #%276,054,0007T ) il = H A
U [B] 4 58 o
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22. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

136

The recoverable amount of the garment and swimwear CGU is
determined from value in use calculation (2015: fair value less costs
of disposal using the income-based approach calculation). The key
assumptions for the income-based approach calculation are similar
to the value in use calculation of provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services CGU as stated in note (a)
above.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next
five years with residual period using the growth rate of 3.99%
(2015: 3.99%). This rate does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows from the Group's activities of manufacturing
and trading of garment and swimwear is 14.60% (2015: 14.73%).
The calculation further considered a 26.69% discount on lack of
marketability for the controlling interests at 30 June 2015.

The goodwill allocated to the apparel and related accessories CGU

was fully written off after the disposal of Charmston during the year
ended 30 June 2015.
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23.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2016 are as

follows:

Name

L

Luxey Finance Limited
(formerly known as
China Post E-Commerce Group Limited)
ERXUBERAR
(RiErBEEEEERAR)

Easy Time
Easy Time

Luxey International (Hong Kong) Limited

EEER (FB)BRAR

Synergy
Synergy

*HD Production Limited (“HD")
RERERMEERAR ([SEEE])

Luxey Online

L
+>+

SN S

Ratio

Ricotex

2
oo
[

Ricotex Industrial Co., Ltd.
("Ricotex Cambodia”)

Ricotex Industrial Co., Ltd.
([Ricotex Cambodia ] )

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation
ML,
ERREXHE

Hong Kong

Bk

BVI
RERLES

Hong Kong
Bk

BV
EBRAES

Hong Kong
BB

BVI

REBRIEE

Hong Kong

i

Hong Kong

B

Kingdom of

Cambodia

REETH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR wmAR M

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #EZ—F

Particular of
issued share capital

BRITRAFE

100 ordinary shares

100/ & B

1 ordinary share of US$1

1RIRTZ BB

10,000 ordinary shares
10,0008% & 3 %

1 ordinary share of US$1
1R1ZT2 ERR

100 ordinary shares
1008 & @R

100 ordinary shares of US$1
each
BREEIFT 2100 E
Ak

500,000 ordinary shares

500,000/ & i

10,000 ordinary shares

10,000/ & i

Registered capital of
US$1,000,000/paid up
capital of US$1,000,000
M EA1,000,000% 7T,/
B &R Z1,000,0005 7T

23.

—NEFENHA=FHILFE

R B ZRE
R-EBE—RNEXNA=TRH WBATZH
BT

Percentage of ownership

BEEASL
2016 2015
—-RE —Z-1F
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
H# Gk B i
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
- - - 51%
- - - 51%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 50% - 45%
- 50% - 45%
- 50% - 45%
- 50% - 45%
EXER (ER) BRAR | —F—

Principal activities

TREH

Inactive

BEEX

Investment holding

RAEK

Investment holding

RAER

Investment holding

REER

Inactive
mEx

Investment holding and
provision of on-line
shopping, advertising and
media related services

REERRRMRG LB B
& RIEBIERTS

Investment holding and trading
of high-end swimwear and
related garment products

REERREESHAEAR
HEREER

Investment holding and trading
of garment products and
swimwear

RERBR R E R IRRE R KK
3

Manufacturing and trading
of garment products and
swimwear

HEREERE

EfmRkR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. RMB AR 2RE (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Particular of
Name operation issued share capital Percentage of ownership Principal activities
HEMAL
£8 BRREXHE BRITREFE EERBEIL FEXB
2016 2015
ZB-RE —E-nf
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
BE M B &
Yofiel International Group Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares - 100% - 100%  Trading of swimwear
FEBREEFRAF BB 10,000 & & A - 100% - 100% BEXE
RESBESH ORI BRAA PRC Registered capital of - 100% - 100%  Inactive
*Global Post E-Commerce Trading Limited RMB4,000,000/paid up
(“Global Post”) capital of RMB4,000,000
RNEEES (RIDERAA e & A A K 4,000,000 - 100% - 100% EEE
(R#]) T/ BERREARE
4,000,0007C
TP ERRERAA PRC Registered capital of - 100% - 100%  Inactive
(IPImER") HK$9,500,000/paid up
capital of HK$8,100,000
TFIT S BRRER R Ll FHA & 27 #9,500,000 - 100% - 100% &%
(ITrMmeEsR)) T/ BHRRABE
8,100,0007T
REMERKERAR PRC Registered capital of - 100% = 100%  Manufacturing and trading
("R HK$8,000,000/paid up of high-end swimwear and
capital of HK$8,000,000 related garment products
REMERRERAR HE A 7R 8,000,000 - 100% - 100% £EREEREXERIER
(TRZ=F4]) T/ ERRBRAE PR
8,000,0007T

*  HD was deregistered during the year. t BBEEFABAEET

* AR R EEE MR AR Kbt 2 A

* The English name of this company represents management’s best

efforts in translating the Chinese name of this company as no CHRXEBREEEERAZNARAF XS
English name has been registered. TRV K o
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNA=1HI F/F

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. RB AR 2RE (&)

Global Post, ;TFIH &% and BE3e# 4 are wholly-owned
foreign enterprises established in the PRC.

The following table shows information of subsidiaries that
have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group.

The summarised financial information represents amounts

before inter-company eliminations.

Name BB

Principal place of business/country of FEEEME M

BREE T PI T & 58 N SRS AR Th it o B X
VZINEBERE

TRETHBARZER EHA 2 IFE
Pt ([OFIERUER | ) HAKEN S BE
R BB ERBET AR HEATN SR -

Ricotex
Mz
2016 2015
e A e i

Hong Kong/Hong Kong

incorporation DAvAETER 58 BB
% of ownership interests/voting rights JEERR R ATIE R 2
held by NCI HEREER WEEBSL 50%/40% 55%/40%
HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT
At 30 June: MWABA=1+H:
Non-current assets ERBEE 23,808 14,800
Current assets MENE E 37,451 28,207
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (283) (95)
Current liabilities mEAaE (47,675) (22,398)
Net assets BEFHE 13,301 20,514
Accumulated NC| REF IR 6,650 11,283

wxEy (2R sRAR ) —2-xEs8 [ 30
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F— NFNA=1HIFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. RIBRBRZRE (&)
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T

Year ended 30 June: BEAA=+THLEFE:
Revenue A 97,117 9,573
Loss B8 (8,068) (17,934)
Total comprehensive income ZEHKRBRE (8,068) (17,934)
Loss allocated to NCI SBL T IR ER 2 BB (4,302) -
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBMAREFE (19,139) (23,905)
Net cash used in investing activities REEHMAE ST (12,331) (14,941)
Net cash generated from BEEBMGE RS FE

financing activities 19,000 38,000
Net decrease in cash and ReRREFEDY

cash equivalents W F R (12,470) (846)
As at 30 June 2016, the bank and cash balances of the RZE—ARNFANA=Z+TH AEERFEH
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB ZHBARIAAREREM 2 RITRIRE
amounted to approximately HK$2,837,000 (2015: KETFH) A8 #52,837,000 T (B — R F:
HK$11,280,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is 75 1#11,280,0007T ) ° AR 5 ¥ SO K /E
subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and SR P A B 2 SN B B AR A e A BE - BB
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign RINSEERRE -

Exchange Regulations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR wmAR

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNNA=1HI F/F

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

25.

Unlisted equity securities, at fair value
Charmston

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Hong

Kong dollars.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods
Merchandises

2016
—E-xEF
HK$°000
BEF T

FELETRAZFS RAFE
et 2,998

R
F MK
LK an
7 fn

24 THHESHEE

2015
—ZT—AHF
HK$'000
BT T

2,998

AHEESREENBE REN-

25. 78
2016 2015
—EB-XE il [l g
HK$’000 HK$'000
B MEF T BT
5,872 2,390
5,315 2,424
2,098 30
- 119
13,285 6,664

EXEE (ZR) ARXA | —B-"FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F— NFNA=1HIFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26.
Trade and bills receivables EUWE FERERNER
Prepayments, deposits and ERR - Ee &k

other receivables H {th e U 5108

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit.
The credit terms generally range from 30 to 90 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers,
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

Z 4 2 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016

BWRESREMBRR
2016 2015
—E—-XF —E—hHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
20,590 4,693
2,749 2,671
23,339 7,364

AEBERZFPENESBERIAAEERE -
SEH RN F30E0K - BT TR
ReEERE -HEPATABNR A&
B 20 ) X M 5 B AR AR 1 R (B IR B U RROR
EETFHEMBRNER-



NOTES TO THE C

ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR wmAR

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNNA=1HI F/F

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on the
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

Current to 30 days BIEAZ=30K
31 -90 days 31 REI0K
91 - 180 days 91 RE180K
Over 180 days B i@ 180K

As at 30 June 2016, an allowance was made for estimated
irrecoverable trade and bills receivables of approximately
HK$2,486,000 (2015: HK$2,258,000).

26. BWE S REMARNR (&)

REZ B < RWE R L EBRR

BEZRRTTOT
2016 2015
=EB-AF —E—HEF
HK$°000 HK$000
BETT BT
14,996 2.156
3,930 I
1,644 717
20 705
20,590 4.693

i 3 e U L e B A T
KEZEKESERREE MR 2 BE
4575 82,486,0000C (Z 2 — A F B
2,258,0007T) °

wxEn (2R ARAR | —2-xaER [ 43



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance for trade and bills receivables:

At beginning of year

Allowance for the year

Amounts written off

Reversal of allowance for the year

A
4
e

FRBERD

At end of year

As of 30 June 2016, trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$1,664,000 (2015: HK$1,424,000) were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default. The ageing analysis of these trade and bills receivables

is as follows:
31 -90 days
91 - 180 days

Over 180 days

144
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31REIOR
91RE180K
Hi8180K
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26. BWE S R EMARNK (#)

R E B L BB BEYR:

2016 2015
—E-XRHF —E—hHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
2,258 2,252
1,283 1,330

- (6)

(1,055) (1,318)
2,486 2,258

R-ZF—REXA=1H EBREZERXR
ER A A B 1,664,000 (—E—RHF:

75 #1,424,0007T ) B2 %0 8RB 3 A R (E © 1
FRIREE TRV EERLHR BT
FEB LERKEFIERRER 2RI

DT :

2016 2015
—EB-AREF —E—AF
HK$000 HK$'000
BMT T BT
- 2

1,644 717

20 705

1,664 1,424




26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group'’s trade and bills receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars ke
United States dollars ETT
Total B

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH
BALANCES

The Group's pledged bank deposits represented deposits
pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group. The deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

As at 30 June 2016, the bank and cash balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$8,688,000 (2015: HK$17,629,000). The bank and cash
balances of the Company denominated in RMB amounted
to approximately HK$5,667,000 (2015: HK$5,992,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

26.

27.

EXEEE (ZR) ARXA | —B-—RFFH

e MR AR A

HE-F-—AEAASTALEE

BWESREMERR (&)

REB 7 ERWE SRR LRZRZ FE
EATINEE BEL:

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BMT T BT T
20 549

20,570 4,144
20,590 4,693

EHEARTERRBRITRASER

AEBEEERRITEFABEEMTRITZ
Tk UBUSRITE TAREZEE %%
TFRTIAEE RBENL

RZE—RENAZ+H ANEE
ARBEBNZEBRTERRESEFTN A
75 #8,688,000t (ZE—RF: B
17,629,0007T) ° AR B AN REEEZ R
TRREHTH BABTS5,667,0007T (=ZF
— R : B ¥5,992,0007T) - A R ¥ 5
BINEBZ R B 2 SNE B B 1G5 R 45
- SERNTESELRT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F— NFNA=1HIFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. EREZREMEBER

2016 2015

—B-RF —_ZT-hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BEF T BT

Trade payables FETE 5 ERK 13,194 1,427

Due to a substantial shareholder B —RBEERRZER 130 495
Due to a non-controlling shareholder of ~ FEfT—REKI B A A2

a subsidiary — B IFIERBR R 2 BB 618 93

Accruals and other payables JEEtE R R E M EMERR 19,845 16,780

33,787 18,795

The amount due to a substantial shareholder is unsecured, BN—BETEREZERSEER 28
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. The NEEEENH BN —HMBRATZ—
ZIERBRREZERDABEER 28K

IBIRBRIEIE -

amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

B R A HE 2 N B S BRFER I o A 0

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of

146

receipt of goods, is as follows: N
2016 2015
—E—REF SE0— A
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current to 30 days BIEAZ30K 9,802 1,385
31 -90 days 31 RE90K 3,382 32
Over 180 days FBiE180K 10 10
13,194 1,427
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28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #EZ =%

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars 7B

United States dollars %E

RMB AR

Total k)

LOAN FROM A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

OF A SUBSIDIARY

The loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
is unsecured, interest-bearing at the prevailing Hong Kong
dollar prime rate of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited minus 1.5 % and repayable on demand.

The carrying amount of the loan is denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

The interest rate at 30 June 2016 is 3.5% (2015: 3.5%).

The loan is arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk.

The directors estimate the fair value of the loan from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, by discounting its
future cash flows at the market rate, to be approximated its
fair value.

EXEEE (ZR) ARXA

28. ENE S RHEMRR

29.

e MR wmAR

—NENHA=FHILFE

(%)

AEBZEMNESERZERENLTIE
® R B

2016 2015
—E—RE —RF
HK$000 HK$°000
BT T BEBEF T
2,186 718
10,103 18
905 691
13,194 1,427

RE-—BHEBARZ - BHFERRR
ZEXK

XA -—HHBAR —BIFERBRE
AAEER REELBESRTARA
AT RITEBEREBF R 5% H
MEABERERER-

B REEAEEFHE

—NENA=Z1THZAEE35%

REF:3.5%)

EFAFBNRGFE AEERMATE
ERENEEL

EEBRBEMSGHNRMBERKEBEERE
EEtRE —RHNB AR —BIFERRR
2 EHATAREATHIEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

30. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

145

At 1 July 2014
Provision used
(Reversal)/addition of provisions

At 30 June 2015 and
1July 2015
Provision used
Reversal of provisions
Exchange differences

At 30 June 2016

RZZ—W&E+H—H
B R
B (Bm@) /A

RZZE—RAE~A=+HAK
“T-AFt+tH—H
EREE

RERD

BN =%

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016

30. EERAEME

Provision for PRC employee
long service severance

payments compensation Total
(note (a) (note (b))
RER%ES TEIES

B BEE @t
(Htit(a)) (Hiitm)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETFT BETFT

485 4,893 5,378

- (239) (239)

(3) 1,308 1,305

482 5,962 6,444

- (@) @

- (1,408) (1,408)

- (382) (382)

482 4,168 4,650




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016

30. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Provision for long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five
years of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent
on the employees’ final salary and years of services, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plan that are
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does
not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

PRC employee severance compensation

Pursuant to the new PRC Labour Contract Law which became
effective on 1 January 2008, the Group is required to pay the
severance compensation to its employees if the employment
contract expires and is not renewed unless the Group has offered
the employment contract on the same terms and conditions but the
offer is rejected by the employee.

Under the Labour Contract Law, the severance compensation is
calculated based on one month'’s salary for each year of employment
completed by the employee and is capped at 12 months’ salary or
12 times 300% of the average monthly salary of the previous year at
the place where the employer is located, whichever is lower. At the
end of each reporting period, the Group has made the provision for
severance compensation for the existing employees in the PRC.

EXEEE (ZR) ARXA | —B-—RFFH

e MR AR A

HE-F-—AEAASTALEE

30. EERAEE (&)

Wit -

(a)

(b)

REREEBE

RIBERERBGD AREBARETERT
EASERBRIAF2ETEEBRBE W
HEXNBEFIE RAFEIURNES 2 &
B—EHFSRRBFH WREREANEE
ZRNEH I REt 2N (BIAREEER 2 4
) o AEEIW BB T EAEEAS N ER M
ERIRTS

Hh 5 Rt e M

REE_FENGF - A BRBERZHTF
BEERZE HWERARERALBEESSE
AAEEARAEREE X NBBME EAXRE
2 RAR R R G RRERERMES
FLAEBAIRR S -

RSB RE HBHEDREESES T
K—SEFRE-EAFESHE MLRR12
18 A% & kB X ATEH £ F A 195 £300%
Z12ME (UABREERE) NEHEHR A
SECHPER AR E 2 BB EF B
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F— NFNA=1HIFE

31. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised by the Group:

At 1July 2014 W-ZE—m&E+A—A
Business combination XS0t

Charge to other comprehensive 724 A £ 4t 2 T U8 258 F1BR
income for the year (note 20)  (f1220)

Credit to profit or loss RERNEBE=RYIZ
for the year (note 13) (H1z£13)

At 30 June 2015 and RZZE—RFAA=1H
1 July 2015 E_Z-—HF+tH—H

Charge to other comprehensive 724 ;A £ 4t 2 T U 25 F0BR
income for the year (note 20)  (f1220)

Charge to profit or loss REARNB®IIX
for the year (note 13) (H1z£13)
At 30 June 2016 R-E—REXA=1+H

Z 50 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016

31. EEHRE
HASEBRACELCHBEREREEN
T

Revaluation of

plant and
Tax losses machinery Total
BHEERE BERBSRER L
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
EBETT BT BT T
- 699 699
= 95 95
= 405 405
(1,121) (490) (1,611)
(1,121) 709 412)
= 665 665
1,121 (642) 479
- 732 732




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR wmAR

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #ZE —F— NFNA=1HI FE

31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
(after offset) for consolidated statement of financial position
purposes:

Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEE
Deferred tax assets IRIEFTEE B

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$55,531,000 (2015:
HK$55,219,000) available for offset against future profits
and are subject to the approval of the respective tax
authorities. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$Nil (2015: HK$6,796,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$55,531,000 (2015: HK$48,423,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$2,946,000, HK$297,000, HK$185,000 and HK$49,000
that will expire in 2017, 2019, 2020 and 2021 respectively.
Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
subsidiaries are insignificant.

31, EERBIE (&)

T ARGAYBIRRERME BT BELE
B (IR ) DT -

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—hEF

HK$000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

732 709

- (121

732 412)

REmERAR AKRE 2 RKEA ] HEHR
2 4 ) 2 7 T8 85 18 49 /& 78 #55,531,000T
T — A4 : 5 ¥55,219,0005T) * BB
EEIJ*H?@MW&E@%& EREEEEE
#@m(_gfﬂi /& #6,796,0007T ) fE
RIEE T IR & B o R A TR T 2 R 2R %
ﬂ o I #E BE B B8 4 T % #55,531,0007T
— A 4F 7B #48,423,0007 ) E R IR
EMBEE ABRATEBEEBED FIR
—+F ZE-NE ZETER=
T~ —F R H 2 #9758 %2,946,0007T - B HE
297,0007T * 7 #185,0007T M 7 #49,000
T2 518 o EAth B 1A B 18 AT £ (R HA 45

LI B A Rl 2 s T A A 2 BB 4
TEA-

EREE (BR) SRAT | —B-AEFH 151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. B

Authorised: EE

70,000,000,000 (2015: 70,000,000,000) 70,000,000,000/% ( =& —H
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 4F 1 70,000,000,0000% ) & &
EEB0.017T 2 TRk

2,000,000,000 (2015: 2,000,000,000)
convertible non-voting preference
shares of HK$0.15 each

2,000,000,000f% (==& —H
£ :2,000,000,0008% ) &A%
HEE #0.1570 2 ] 2 iR &
HEERLR

312,500,000 (2015: 312,500,000) series  312,500,0000% (= ZE— R 4F :
312,500,0008% ) & X E (B
¥:0.167C 2 BR Y A AR & 1%
ZREEER

B convertible non-voting preference
shares of HK$0.16 each

Issued and fully paid: CRITRHME:

5,098,793,790 (2015: 986,358,758)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

5,098,793,790/% (== —H
£ :986,358,7580% ) F AR HE
BEAEH0.01L 2 LAk

1,103,333,333 (2015: 1,103,333,333)
convertible non-voting preference
shares of HK$0.15 each

1,103,333,333 (== —Hh
£ :1,103,333,3338%) A%
T BB #0.1570 2 Al 2% £
BRERELER

279,100,000 (2015: 312,500,000) series  279,100,0008% ( =T —F £ :
312,500,0008% ) & X E (B
¥:0.167C 2 BR Y A AR & 1%
EREER

B convertible non-voting preference
shares of HK$0.16 each

152
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2016 2015
—E—XRF —ZE—TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
B F T BT T
700,000 700,000
300,000 300,000
50,000 50,000
1,050,000 1,050,000
50,988 9,864
165,500 165,500
44,656 50,000
261,144 225,364




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2016

32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

A summary of the movements in the authorised and issued

share capital of the Company during the years ended 30 June

2016 and 2015 is as follows:

Note
i3
Authorised: EE
At1July 2014 R-E-mE+A—A
Capital reorganisation EAEH @
Increase in authorised share capital FEERAE M )
At 30 June 2015, 1 July 2015 and R=Z—-RF~A=+AH"
30 June 2016 “T-AFtA-HK
—E-AFRA=TH
Issued and fully paid: BRIRAE:
At 1uly 2014 RZZE—M$+A—-AR
Capital reorganisation EARER @)
Settlement of promissory notes HERNZE b)
At 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 RZZE-AFAA=tAK
“Z2-1FtA-H
Bonus issue BT IR ©
Conversion of series B convertible BIBRS| MR ERE
non-voting preference shares ERER (@
At 30 June 2016 RZZ—A"F~A=tH

HE-F-—AEAASTALEE

32. R&(#&)
ARBHE_T—RERZTE-—HFRA
= tHIEFENEEREBITRAZE
HEMT -

Number of
Number of series B
convertible convertible
Number of Number of non-voting non-voting
ordinary ordinary preference preference
shares of shares of shares of shares of
HK$0.25each  HKS$0.01each ~ HKS$0.15each  HK$0.16 each Par value
BREE SREEES
ShREE BREE #0152 0.6 ZBRI
BH05Tz BT TRARERREE TAREREE
EEREE EEREA BEREE BERHE &
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR T T T BEFT
2,800,000 - 2,000,000 - 1,000,000
(2,800,000) 70,000,000 - - -
- - - 312,500 50,000
- 70,000,000 2,000,000 312,500 1,050,000
986,359 - 1,103,333 - 412,090
(986,359) 986,359 - - (236,726)
- - - 312,500 50,000
- 986,359 1,103,333 312,500 225,364
- 3,945,435 - - 39,454
- 167,000 - (33,400) (3,674)
= 5,098,794 1,103,333 279,100 261,144
wxEy (2R ARAR | —2-xEE8 [ 5



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F— NFNA=1HIFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

154

On 20 August 2014, the par value of each issued consolidated
share of HK$0.25 was reduced to HK$0.01 by cancelling paid-up
capital to the extent of HK$0.24 on each issued consolidated share.
Immediately following the capital reduction, each authorised and
unissued consolidated share was subdivided into 25 new shares of
HK$0.01 each.

By an ordinary resolution passed on 26 November 2014 the
authorised share capital was increased from HK$1,000,000,000
divided into 70,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
and 2,000,000,000 convertible non-voting preference shares of
HK$0.15 each to HK$1,050,000,000 divided into 70,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, 2,000,000,000 convertible non-
voting preference shares of HK$0.15 each and 312,500,000 series
B convertible non-voting preference shares of HK$0.16 each by
the creation of an additional 312,500,000 series B convertible non-
voting preference shares of HK$0.16 each.

On 15 December 2014, 312,500,000 series B convertible non-
voting preference shares of HK$0.16 each were issued for
settlement of promissory notes in the principal amount of
HK$50,000,000.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited / Annual Report 2016

32. RA&(#&)
Vi

(@ R-ZE—WENA-+H EREETAH
& fn 2 EEBE0. 25 TE BB ERE ETT
B GERR (5 7 8575 150,24 7T 2 85 2 IR 25 B Rk
ER10.017T - RERAEIRE - BRIETE R
KREEITA GG B A A2SR SR EESE
0.017T 2 A% 15 °

(b) FEERZ WE+—A-+"A@BB2—
IE%@?& : 35 FEHE R RBHN312,500,0000% &

P& T (B /5 #50.1670 Z BR 5I) AJ #2 % % 18 = 4
BERR A EIRAE B4 % 1,000,000,0007T
(4 /70,000,000,000% & i% B 7 #£0.01 7T
2 3@ A% }2,000,000,0000% & i% M & 75 ¥
0.157C .2 AR AR AR RAEE SR ) G N2 B
1,050,000,0007T (% 470,000,000,000/% &F
B% 1 {8 7% #50.01 7T 2 & @ A% + 2,000,000,000
Be &R B S #50.15 T 2 Al R 4 5 = 4B
Jeh% %312,500,0008% Z IR EE#H80.167T 2
BRIIFTAR B IR EEBER) ©

RZZE—WHF+=A+AHH " 312,500,000
‘xHxﬁ@,%m%o.myzZB?:ﬁlJT%@H%ﬁﬂx
ZRELEREFRITULEEASEABE
50,000,0007T 2 & =45 ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016

32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

On 18 May 2015, the Board of Directors proposed a bonus share
issue to the qualifying shareholders on the basis of four bonus
shares for every one existing share held on 3 July 2015 (the “Record
Date"). The bonus shares, upon allotment and issue, will be credited
as fully paid at par by way of capitalisation of an amount equal to
the total par value of the bonus shares standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company. The Board of Directors
also proposed a bonus warrant issue to the qualifying shareholders
on the basis of one warrant for every one existing share held on
the Record Date. Each warrant will entitle the holder thereof to
subscribe in cash for one warrant share at an initial subscription
price of HK$0.18 per warrant share, subject to adjustment, on the
date falling 12 months from the date of issue of the warrants (the
“Warrants”).

The issue of bonus shares and bonus Warrants were approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 24 June 2015 and a total of 3,945,435,032 bonus shares
and 986,358,758 Warrants were issued on 13 July 2015.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, 167,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued as a result of the conversion of
33,400,000 series B convertible non-voting preference shares.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in

order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group

may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,

return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to

reduce debt.

EXEE (ZR) ARXA | —B-"FFH

e MR wmAR

HE-E-—AEAA=TALEE

32. BRA&(#&)

Hrat: (&)

(0)

R-ZZ-—RAFAAT/\R EFEEZHNAE
BERRRELARET Z2ESR_F—10
FLA=R ([R&HKAMD SFF-RAER
D B PUARAT IR - POAC B8 R BEAT1R - ALRR IS
BEMMESRARAEEZ AR RN E
EBRZERBEHAREBEARIIAHRE &
ERTEENSEBRRELANBREE
BT EERNEHAHRSHA -RRER
MEE— M RIREZE BORREERET
HF5A ANENRRBERE ([ RIHEE]) BT
FHE R+ —EAEARNIREETK
RIRFEFE RN EE0.187T (A FHRE) AR S

RIE R

ARBITRAFNAREZRITER =T —5
FERNAZTMHBERITZARRREERNAS
R R BEfE - 48 513,945,435,03288 AT ik
986,358,758 RIREEFER T —HF
A+=B®E%T-

REZZZ—R"EXAZTHILFE FH&EHR
33,400,000/% B 2 7I| A] #A iR S48 =R B SR AR -
167,000,000/ & AR E {8 % #50.017T 2 & i Ak
LT

AEBEREARAZ BMARENEEFE

ey

ZEEN  ARBREEHEE R R SE

FOERENG ARBREELAREIA
AR E AR o

RERIABEARE AEEAEBH
BENTRRZBEEEZR REEXTR
RBITHBRMDAHEBENRDE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 32. A& (#&)
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors BEERNEMAR - AEEZREEARE
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated bE REERE AN o I b R LAE 750 F FE R DA
as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as mAAFETE - ERFENARERE (B4R
total liabilities (including current and non-current liabilities as EUMBMRARM TR NIERBEE)
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less BAEEREeEEEBERFE BB
cash and cash equivalents. Total equity represents the equity as REMBARRRATR 2 e -

shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The gearing ratios at 30 June 2016 and 2015 are as follows: R_BE-—RNERZT-—RFA=THZ
BEEABHENT:

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—HF

HK$000 HK$'000

BT BT

Total debt B AR 65,591 42,185

Less: cash and cash equivalents BoRekREEEER (48,556) (71,773)

Net debt (ERvEEE 17,035 (29,588)

Total equity g CEC 154,904 206,272

Gearing ratio EEABRBLE 11% (14%)

The increase in gearing ratio during the year resulted primarily RERN BEEABREX FAFTERNRE —

from the increase in loan from a non-controlling shareholder EIM B ARz — B IEIERARR 2 BEFRIE M
of a subsidiary and decrease in cash and cash equivalents. kRekReFEEE MDA

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the NER B M35 OB R P 2 L 2 ME—

Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to INEBRFIE RN TE A IR 2 BRFR

have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group EELERB% ASEBRNDELEE

received a report from the share registrars on substantial share 5%*1%?%55’\#’&%%]3 EZBBEERMD

interests showing the non-public float and it demonstrated BamsRE EEFALREBEREEAFEA

continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout the — BB F25%PREE -

year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNNA=1HI F/F

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 33. KA TR ZHBMRAR R EEEE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(@) FDB 2B &K

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

2016 2015
—B-RF —F—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
okza BT T BT T
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIKE 162,489 153,046
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and SEENE 58
other receivables H b fE UL BR 5K 317 292
Due from subsidiaries UG B B A B 3R IE 6,675 4,469
Bank and cash balances RITNRe&EF 6,551 12,593
13,543 117,354
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables EstERA K
E b FERTBR K 1,830 2,122
Due to subsidiaries AN NI ] 3,577 5,354
5,407 7,476
Net current assets REEEEE 8,136 9,878
NET ASSETS EEFE 170,625 162,924
Capital and reserves R K % &
Share capital A& A< 32 261,144 225,364
Reserves A 33(b) (90,519) (62,440)
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 170,625 162,924

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 September

2016 and is signed on its behalf by:

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph

EFeR T R"FAA-+-HAHtEYS
BHTNIIESERRRE:

Lau Chun Fat, George

28R B
Chairman Executive Director
FE HITEE

EXEEE (ZR) ARXA | —B-—RFFH
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At 1July 2014

Loss for the year
Capital reorganisation
(note 32(3))
Reclassification adjustments for

amounts transferred to profit or
loss upon disposal of available-

for-sale financial assets

At 30 June 2015 and
1 July 2015
Loss for the year
Bonus issue (note 32(c))

Conversion of series B convertible

non-voting preference shares
(note 32(d)

At 30 June 2016

34. RESERVES

(@) Group

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

“T-pmE+A—H

FRER
BAREA (Hi232(a)

RHEETHEESREE
RERERG SR
ERipp il

“T-RFERAZTHEK
—“Z-RFtA—H
FAEAR
BITAM (Ha232(c))
BB ETI| AR
ERFEELR
(H1:32(d))

E—RNFENA=FHIFFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —

33. A RAZHUBRRRKRFEEES (&)

(b) XRRZHEED

Capital Investment

Share redemption  Accumulated revaluation
premium reserve losses reserve Total
ROEE BAREREE RitBE REERRE am
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BEFT BEFT BETFT BETFT BEFT
612,523 150 (615,580) (443) (3,350)
- - (296,259) - (296,259)
- - 236,726 - 236,726
- - - 443 443
612,523 150 (675,113) - (62,440)
- - 7,701 - 7,701
(39,454) - = = (39,454)
3,674 - - — 3,674
576,743 150 (667,412) = (90,519)

34. &
(a) # %

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements

therein are presented in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and

consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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NOTES TO THE C

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #EHZ—F

34. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(@)

(i)

(@iii)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 4(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Plant and machinery revaluation reserve

The plant and machinery revaluation reserve has
been set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for plant and
machinery in note 4(d) to the consolidated financial
statements.

ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR A

—NEFENHA=FHILFE

34, #E (&)
(b) EEZHEERAR
() ROHEE

BIERSESARE AAAR
MBRERZESAIDIKTART

IRER - MEEFEEE RAR S B ERfE

RARIGEERERAEERHE
Hi 2 BT o

(i) EX#E

IE i BB E BN 1S
BRATEEZBEREZRE Z
[ IR IR AR & B SRR M A 40K
52 BEt R BRI -

(i) B REEE R

BEEEEEGFERDER

I B AR AR & B 5% R B E£4(d)
Pt 2 AR BS B 2R iR 2 & 5
BREHE

EEEE (ZR) ARXA

| =% —



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

34. RESERVES (Continued) 34. it (&)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (b) FEEz2HERAR (£)
(iv) Capital redemption reserve (iv) EXEEFE
Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal BB #EEBR AR R A9k
value of the shares repurchased which was paid out FEM ZFTEERND < EE-

of the distributable reserves of the Company.

(v) Investment revaluation reserve ) REELFE
The investment revaluation reserve comprises the REEHRFEERLENREHRR
cumulative net change in the fair value of available- Bzt ESsMEEATEL
for-sale financial assets held at the end of the ZEHEE ) WREEH NG S M
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance MR T4 ()2 S BRE
with the accounting policy in note 4(i)(ii) to the I o

consolidated financial statements.

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 35. IR B ER K
Equity-settled share option scheme URESEE 2 BRELTS
The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) RNATIRAE—EERETE ([ZE181]) -
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible NERREATEELE ZKINEHE
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's Rz G EB2HE SERBEEVEARAR
operations. Eligible participants include the full-time and ARARTMBARICEBRFEBES
part-time employees, executives, officers, directors, business THRAE -BEBABE EF EBERB-H#
consultants, suppliers, customers, legal and financial advisers B KPR LMIGER cZeTER =
of the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme TENF=ATN\BAR BRIFEZTTFMN
became effective on 18 March 2008 and, unless otherwise EHENEE BRAIKRZARTFEER
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from o
that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &2 —F— NFNNA=1HI F/F

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

35. LR RER 2 (2)

DS EE B8 (&

BIEZETE BREAR T 2 RT1TEBERE
ZEZHERBER—EITE  AAFR
EARHRE BITRMN 210%  REM[+=
EAMBERN ZiAel ARBEETEREE
BLHE ZEREMIBTIEERNE
B TIRAAR R B RMEMEHEE BTG5 2
1% o IR TEERB L REE  BAXEEES
AR RS E b -

BRIARACES FETBRABREE
RERSBEE 2 EMBEA LT ZBIRE 2
ARG B IERITESRUE o AN - 1A
BYARREERRI B IERNITES L
BEZEMBEALT ZBRER+ZEA
A2 E )RR BEAAREEITRG 2
0.1%BE (AR TEBARARMDER
A ELE) B 3E 78 5,000,000t 0 5 B FE &
FREBRRAIRRAS LR .

wxEn (2R ARAR | —2-xEER [ () ]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 35 URGBAEBZNAR(E)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of the
offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share options were granted, forfeited, exercised or expired
under the Scheme during the year (2015: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #EHZ—F

36. PURCHASE OF NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

During the year, the Group acquired 5% interest in a 45%
owned subsidiary from a non-controlling shareholder at a cash
consideration of HK$2,000,000. The effect of the acquisition
on the equity attributable to the owners of the Company is as

follows:

Share of net assets in the subsidiary acquired

RIE

Consideration

Loss on acquisition recognised directly
in equity
37. PENDING LITIGATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following pending litigation:

On 19 January 2004, a winding up petition was filed
against the Company by certain ex-senior employees of the
Group claiming for payment in the sum of approximately
HK$594,000 from the Company in respect of an award/
order dated 20 October 2003 granted by the Labour Tribunal
in respect of the severance and bonus dispute between
the Company and the ex-senior employees. The unsettled
amounts of approximately HK$594,000 were fully accrued
in trade and other payables during the year ended 30 June
2005 and remain outstanding as at 30 June 2015 and 30 June
2016. The case has been ceased to be active since the year
ended 30 June 2005.

FEIGFTEI B AR 2 &

e MR AR A

—NEFENHA=FHILFE

36. BEFEZRERS

RAFERN REBUNREKREEE
2,000,0007C A1 FE+E % B SR N B — M HE B
45%@5\ Z B AR Z5%HEE o W g H K

HEENEDERZ WBER

NEEBANEE R ZENT
HK$'000
BT T
EFE 758
(2,000)
(1,242)

37. RIRFEA

RBEIR > REEZ ARORFRAT :

RIZEZFNE—A+TNAB A&EBETAS
ABEREHHARAZBFRER RS
BEIENR_ZET=FTA-_THRAR

AEZ SR AR E M B E RIEA Y
DER 2 BR/H L MARRREZ
#) 78 #594,0007T c A E R F BN AL
594,000cERNEBE=—EERAF /A =TH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZE —F—NFNA=1HIFE

38. LEASE COMMITMENTS 38. HE&IE
At 30 June 2016 the total future minimum lease payments RZZE—RNESA=+H" fﬁﬂiXTT
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: LGk T%.—ﬁ EvHERBEENTATENT
2016 2015
—RE —E=—FHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
B F T BBF T
Within one year —F R 6,442 4,554
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFRF
(BREEEMF) 14,730 11,704
After five years AF% 9,147 7,417
30,319 23,675
Operating lease payments represented rental payable by the KEMENREASEREETHAE
Group for certain of its offices, warehouses, director’s quarter BE EEEeshEFEEMNEMNZES - HE
and car parking spaces. Leases are negotiated for terms HREAN T 12105 BN ABEAETE &
ranging from 1 to 10 years and rentals are fixed over the lease WEBENAEE -

terms and do not include contingent rentals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #tZ2 —ZF— %

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a

In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions
with its related parties during the year:

Sales to an associate
Purchases from an associate

0|

Interest income from an associate
Rental expenses paid to a related

ZHEFRX

company

A director, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, is the owner of the
related company.

The key management personnel of the Company
comprises the five highest paid individuals and directors,
details of their remuneration are disclosed in notes 16(b)
and 17(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a

On 28 July 2016, an aggregate of 4,978,523 ordinary
shares were issued as a result of the exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to 4,978,523 Warrants.
The subscription rights attaching to the remaining
981,380,235 Warrants expired on 12 July 2016.
The premium on the issue of shares, amounting
to approximately HK$846,000 was credited to the
Company'’s share premium account.

EEEE (ZR) ARXA
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39. BEAEIRE

(a
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BHRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 EZ—F

—NFNA=THIFE

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

(b)

166

On 18 July 2016, the Company and the placing agent
entered into a placing agreement, pursuant to which the
placing agent agreed to procure not less than six placees
to purchase up to 300,000,000 shares at placing price
of HK$0.10 per share (the “Placing”). On the same date,
the Company and JL Investments Capital Limited (the
“Subscriber”), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which
the Subscriber agreed to subscribe for and the Company
agreed to allot and issue an aggregate of 300,000,000
shares at subscription price of HK$0.10 per share (the
“Subscription”).

The Placing and Subscription were approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 7 September 2016. The premium
on the issue of shares, amounting to approximately
HK$52,800,000, net of share issue expenses, will be
credited to the Company's share premium account upon
completion of the Placing and Subscription. The shares
will rank pari passu in all respects with the ordinary shares
of the Company in issue on the date of allotment.

Please refer to announcements of the Company dated
18 July 2016, 8 August 2016, 22 August 2016 and 7
September 2016 and circular dated 22 August 2016 for
details.
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The following is a summary of the published results and of the
assets and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in

the note below:

RESULTS
Revenue

Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Loss before tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Loss for the year/period from
continuing operations
Loss from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year/period

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

£
WA

TERERS
ERILEERE

BBt AT B R
FiEB (BR) R

RERBELERK L
FE/HABE
REERIEBEXRH

ZEE

FE/HRER

THIALIEL
RREHEBA
IR

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHBEME

BUARBERABZHENT

BETIMEMSCEEMBRAREE TEE

Eighteen
months

Year ended Year ended Year ended ended Year ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 31 December
2016 2015 2014 2013 2011

BHE

8E BHE BE HZ —T——¢F
“E-RE | ZE—1F —T-WFE —T—=F +=A
AB=Z+H | SA=TE SA=tH  SA=1H =t+—H
LEE HFE HFE [+ NAEA FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BETFTT BT T BB FBETT BT
139,981 121,251 96,644 154,548 72,307

- 36,403 172,233 292,325 182,240

139,981 157,654 268,877 446,873 254,547
(51,075) (243,106) (90,169) (82,142) (296,673)
(478) 181 209 (1,580) (668)
(51,553) (242,925) (89,960) (83,722) (297,341)

- (9,255) (26,141) (10,500) (40,874)

(51,553) (252,180) (116,101) (94,222) (338,215)
(47,251) (245,444) (104,391) (84,992) (338,527)
(4,302) (6,736) (11,710) (9,230) 312
(51,553) (252,180) (116,101) (94,222) (338,215)
HRER (2R) ARAT | —B-xEER [ (]



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FEHBEME

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

BERAME
FRBEE
mEBEE
FRBRIE
mEAE

BERE
THIALIES

AREHERA
Ry £

At At At At At
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 31 December
2016 2015 2014 2013 2011
i
i i i ®n —E——F
ZE-RE | ZE—HF —ZT-@OmFE —T—=F +=A
AHA=TH ~NA=tH A~A=tH A~A=TH ==E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT BEFT FBEFT EETFT
134,702 162,015 391,902 462,194 498,073
85,793 86,442 155,914 177,957 217,979
(732) - (46,402) (44,554) (40,527)
(64,859) (42,185) (111,374) (90,116) (154,829)
154,904 206,272 390,040 505,481 520,696
148,254 195,439 405,494 509,225 514,655
6,650 10,833 (15,454) (3,744) 6,041
154,904 206,272 390,040 505,481 520,696
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